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Tel: 604 688 5421
Fax: 604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
600 Cathedral Place
925 West Georgia Street
Vancouver BC V6C 3L2 Canada

Direct Line: 604-443-4716
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca

April 15, 2015
Members of the Board
Sunshine Coast Regional District and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC V0N 3A1
Dear Board Members:
We are pleased to present the results of our audits of the financial statements of the Sunshine
Coast Regional District (“SCRD”) and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District (“SCRHD”) for the
year ended December 31, 2014. The purpose of our report is to summarize certain aspects of the
audit that we believe to be of interest to the Board members and should be read in conjunction
with the draft financial statements.
Our audit and therefore this report will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of
interest to the Board members in fulfilling its responsibilities.
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Board members and should not be
distributed without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibility to a third party
that uses this communication.
We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from
SCRD’s management and staff that assisted us in carrying out our work. We look forward to
discussing the contents of this report and any other matters that you consider appropriate.
Yours truly,

Bill Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Audit Results

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.
A detailed description of our audit results has been included on page 8.

Status of Audits

Audit Risks

As of the date of this final report, we have substantially completed our
audits of the December 31, 2014 SCRD and SCRHD financial statements
pending the completion of the items highlighted below. These items will
need to be completed prior to issuance of our audit report on the
financial statements:


Receipt of the signed management representation letter



Subsequent events review through to financial statement approval
date



Approval of financial statements by the Board.

In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the
following areas that we identified as containing risks of material
misstatements:






Risk of Management Override
Cash and Investments
Staff Salaries
Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization
Liability for Landfill Closure

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these
risk areas, beginning on page 8 of this report.
Internal Control
Over Financial
Reporting

We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal controls over
financial reporting during the year ended December 31, 2014 that we
considered to be material weaknesses.

Fraud and Illegal
Activities

We developed procedures within our audit plan as recommended by CAS
240 – The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of
Financial Statements.
Based on these procedures, we have not
encountered any illegal activities or fraudulent events with respect to
SCRD and SCRHD.

Significant
Events

As of the date of this letter, we have not identified any significant events
which we believe should be brought to your attention.

Significant
Accounting
Policies

SCRD and SCRHD’s significant accounting policies are listed in the
financial statements. We believe management’s selection of accounting
policies is appropriate under Canadian public sector accounting
standards.
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Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements and
are based on management’s current judgments. These judgments are
based on knowledge and experience about past and current events,
assumptions about future events and interpretations of the financial
reporting standards.
Our comments on the significant estimates included in the financial
statements are included on page 10 of this report.

Materiality, Audit
Adjustments and
Unadjusted
Differences

Our final materiality level for SCRD of $790,000 changed from our
planning materiality of $680,000 in our audit planning letter presented to
the Board Members on December 11, 2014.
Our final materiality level for SCRHD of $40,000 changed from our
planning materiality of $83,000 in our audit planning letter sent to the
Board Members on December 11, 2014.
There are no unadjusted misstatements for the year ended December 31,
2014.
There were no year-end audit adjustments.

Disclosures

There are no material omissions with respect to the disclosures in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 that we have
noted.

Independence

We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to mitigate
threats to our independence. Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) no longer require that we communicate formally to you
in regard to independence matters; however, we consider it to be a good
practice. As such, we would report to you regarding all relationships
between SCRD and SCRHD and our firm that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We
confirmed our independence to the Board members for the year ended
December 31, 2014 in our Planning Report dated December 11, 2014. We
confirm that we are still independent as of the date of this letter.

Representation
Letter

A draft version of the representation letter to be signed by management
is included in Appendix C.

Conclusion

We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the financial statements
of the SCRD and SCRHD for the year ended December 31, 2014 once the
outstanding items referred to above are satisfactorily resolved and the
financial statements are approved the Board.
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INDEPENDENCE
At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence. Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) no longer require that we communicate formally to
you in regard to independence matters; however, we consider it to be a good practice. As such,
we would report to you regarding all relationships between SCRD, SCRHD and our firm that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We have
confirmed our independence to the Board Members for the year ended December 31, 2014 in our
Planning Report dated December 11, 2014. We confirm that we are still independent as of the
date of this letter.
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MATERIALITY
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
We communicated to you our planning materiality levels in our Planning Report to the Board
members. Our materiality levels, for SCRD, have changed slightly from our audit planning letter
presented to the Board members on December 11, 2014. Final materiality was $790,000 based on
2.0% of normalized revenues. This increase from planning materiality of $680,000 resulted from
differences between estimated and actual annual results for the year ended December 31, 2014.
As well, our materiality levels, for SCRHD, have changed from our audit planning letter presented
to the Board members on December 11, 2014. Final materiality was $40,000 based on 2.0% of
normalized revenues. This decrease from planning materiality of $83,000 resulted from
difference between estimated and actual results for the year ended December 31, 2014.
There were no corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified during our audit which we
determined to be above “clearly trivial”. Misstatements are considered to be clearly trivial for
purposes of the audit when they are inconsequential both individually and in aggregate.
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AUDIT FINDINGS
Based on our knowledge of SCRD and SCRHD’s operations, our past experience in this area, and
knowledge gained from management and the Board, we have identified the following significant
risks; those risks of material misstatement that, in our judgment, require special audit
consideration.
Significant risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them.
As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our
views about significant qualitative aspects of SCRD and SCRHD’s accounting practices, including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.

ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT MATTERS
Management Override of Controls
Risk

Approach

Results

Management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud
because of management’s
ability to directly or
indirectly manipulate
accounting records, and
prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding
controls that otherwise
appear to be operating
effectively.

We tested the
appropriateness of journal
entries recorded in the
general ledger and other
adjustments made in the
preparation of the
financial statements.

All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

[This risk is required for all
audits pursuant to Canadian
audit standards.]
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Cash and Investments
Risk
Due to its nature, cash and
investments are almost
always considered to be a
risk area in any audit.

Approach
We reviewed the year end
reconciliations and
obtained third party
confirmations.

Results
All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

Staff Salaries
Risk

Approach

Results

A significant single type of
expenditure that cover
many employees and
departments. As a
municipality, this figure is
often of particular interest
to financial statement users
(taxpayers).

We applied computer audit
testing to analyze all
payroll transactions in the
year. We performed system
testing, tests of controls
and analytical review of
staff salaries.

All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization
Risk

Approach

Results

More thant 5 years have
passed since original
estimates were made of the
useful lives of tangible
capital assets owned by the
District and estimates will
need to be re-evaluated to
determine if they are still
accurate. This involves a
high level of estimation and
coordination of the finance
department with other
departments.

We performed tests of
control for appropriate
authorization of purchases
combined with substantive
testing of additions and
disposals and amortization
calculations. Useful lives of
existing assets were
reviewed.

All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.
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Liability for Landfill Closure
Risk
A significant liability that is
calculated based on
management assumptions
and engineering reports.
Due to the nature of the
high level of estimates
required and the possibility
of new information
becoming available this
liability calculation is
considered a risk area.

Approach
We reviewed calculations
related to the liability
recorded, as well as
reviewed engineering
reports. We also performed
an audit of the significant
assumptions used for the
calculation.

Results
All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
During the year, additional information became available about SCRD’s inventory of tangible
capital assets. This resulted in an increase to asset costs previously reported in SCRD’s financial
statements. Management has recorded the increase as a prior period adjustment and it is
discussed in note 3 of the financial statements. We have reviewed documentation provided to
substantiate the prior period adjustment and its effect on amortization in the comparative and
current year financial statements. Based on the audit work that we have performed, we believe
the accounting treatment of the increased asset value is appropriate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Management is responsible for determining SCRD and SCRHD’s significant accounting policies. The
choice between accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial
position and results of the organization. The application of those policies often involves
significant estimates and judgments by management. Based on the audit work that we have
performed, it is our opinion that the estimates in the financial statements are reasonable and the
disclosures relating to accounting estimates are in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES
There were no significant unadjusted differences or disclosure omissions identified through the
course of our audit engagements for either, SCRD or SCRHD.

AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS
There were no year end audit adjustments for either, SCRD or SCRHD.
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MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS
During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to us. These
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through the
financial statements. Management provided representations in response to specific queries from
us, as well as unsolicited representations. Such representations were part of the evidence
gathered by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base our audit opinion.
These representations were documented in our audit working papers through memoranda of
discussions with management, as well as by written representations received from management.
A copy of the representation letter we have requested from management is included in Appendix
C of this report.
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FRAUD DISCUSSION
Canadian auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Board of Directors on an
annual basis. We discussed it in our Planning Report dated December 11, 2014. Currently, we
are not aware of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. If you aware of any instances of actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting SCRD or SCRHD since the date of our previous discussion,
please advise us at bcox@bdo.ca.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR DETECTING FRAUD
We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud.
The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error, because fraud may
involve collusion as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schedules designed to conceal
it.
During our audit, we performed the following procedures in order to fulfill our responsibilities:


Inquire of management, Board, and others related to any knowledge of fraud, suspected
fraud or alleged fraud;



Perform disaggregated analytical procedures and
relationships indentified in the planning of our audit;



Incorporate an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures; and



Perform additional required procedures to address the risk of management’s override of
controls including;

consider

unusual

or

unexpected

o

Testing internal controls designed to prevent and detect fraud;

o

Examine a sample of journal entries and other adjustments for evidence of the
possibility of material misstatement due to fraud;

o

Review accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatements
due to fraud, including a retrospective review of significant prior years’ estimates;
and

o

Evaluate SCRD and SCRHD’s rationale for significant unusual transactions.
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INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS
During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with respect to SCRD and
SCRHD’s internal control environment:


Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation of control activities
that were relevant to the audit.



Discussed and considered potential audit risks.

The results of these procedures were considered in determining the extent and nature of
substantive audit testing required.
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we
have identified during the audit. A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is of
sufficient importance to merit the attention of those charged with governance.
As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on SCRD and SCRHD’s financial
statements, our audit cannot be expected to disclose all matters that may be of interest to you
and, as a result, the matters reported may not be exclusive. As part of our work, we considered
internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such that we were able to
design appropriate audit procedures. This work was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control.

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL
Deficiency

Issue and Impact

None noted.

None noted.

While there are no significant deficiencies in internal controls noted, we do take the opportunity
to comment on non-critical matters in our “management letter” that is included in Appendix D.
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APPENDIX A – Other Required Communication

Required Communication
1. Our responsibilities under
Canadian Auditing Standards
(CAS)

Audit Planning
Presentation


2. Our audit strategy and audit scope



3. Fraud risk factors



4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Audit
Results
Presentation

Going concern matters
Significant estimates or judgments
Audit adjustments
Unadjusted differences
Omitted disclosures
Disagreements with management








10. Consultations with other
accountants or experts



11. Major issues discussed with
management in regards to
retention
12. Significant difficulties encountered
during the audit



13. Significant deficiencies in internal
control





14

Auditor
Comments
Included in our
engagement letter
dated December
21, 2014.
Included in our
Planning Report
which was
presented to the
Board of Directors
on December 11,
2015.
Included in our
Planning Report
which was
presented to the
Board of Directors
on December 11,
2015.
None.
See Page 10.
None noted.
None noted.
None noted.
There were no
disagreements with
management.
No external
experts were
consulted during
this engagement.
None.
No significant
difficulties were
encountered during
our audit.
No significant
deficiencies were
noted.
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Required Communication

Audit Planning
Presentation

14. Material written communication
between BDO and management

Audit
Results
Presentation


15. Any relationships which may affect
our independence
16. Any illegal acts identified during
the audit



17. Any fraud or possible fraudulent
acts identified during the audit







Auditor
Comments
No material
written
communications
were noted.
No independence
issues noted.
No illegal activities
identified through
the audit process.
No fraud identified
through the audit
process.
None noted.

18. Significant transactions with
related parties not consistent with
ordinary business operations



19. Non-compliance with laws or
regulations identified during the
audit



20. Limitations of scope over our audit,
if any



No legal or
regulatory noncompliance
matters were
noted as part of
our audit.
None.

21. Written representations made by
management



See Appendix D.

22. Any modifications to our opinion, if
required



Please see our
draft auditor’s
reports for SCRD
and SCRHD
included in
Appendix B.
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APPENDIX B – Draft Independent Auditor’s Report
(SCRD and SCRHD)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Chairperson and Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statements of Operations,
Change in Net Debt and Cash Flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the
Sunshine Coast Regional District as at December 31, 2014 and its results of operations, changes in net debt
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
April 23, 2015

16

Sunshine Coast Regional District 16

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Chairperson and Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statements of Operations,
Changes in Net Financial Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the
Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations, changes
in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
April 23, 2015
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APPENDIX C - Representation Letter
April 23, 2015
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
600 Cathedral Place
925 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3L2
Canada
Dear Sirs/Mesdames:
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
the Sunshine Coast Regional District (“SCRD”) for the year ended December 31, 2014, for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the results of operations
and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 of the Sunshine Coast Regional District in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
Financial Statements
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
dated December 11, 2014, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards; in particular the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance therewith.
2. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value are reasonable.
3. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Public sector accounting standards.
4. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Public sector
accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.
5. The financial statements of SCRD use appropriate accounting policies that have been
properly disclosed and consistently applied.
Information Provided
6. We have provided you with:
-

access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

-

additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and
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-

unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

7. We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls
to prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all
deficiencies in internal control of which we are aware.
8. The minute books of the Board are a complete record of all meetings and resolutions of
the Board throughout the year and to the present date.
9. We have disclosed to you all significant matters contained in the minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of Board throughout the year and to the present date.
10. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.
11. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements.
12. We have identified to you:
-

guarantees;

-

indemnifications against damages, liabilities, costs, charges or expenses suffered or
incurred by officers or directors as a result of their service, and/or by any
subsidiaries; and

-

non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration.

13. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.
14. We are aware of the environmental laws and regulations that impact SCRD and we are in
compliance. There are no known environmental liabilities or contingencies that have not
been accrued for or disclosed in the financial statements.
Fraud and Error
15. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and have determined such
risk to be low.
16. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we
are aware of and that affects the entity and involves:
-

management;

-

employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

-

others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

17. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators, or others.
18. We have reviewed and approved all journal entries recommended by the auditors during
the audit.
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19. The effects of unadjusted misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. A list of the uncorrected
misstatements is attached to the representation letter.
Existence, Completeness and Valuation of Specific Financial Statement Balances
20. All assets, wherever located, to which SCRD had satisfactory title at the year end, have
been fairly stated and recorded in the financial statements. There are no liens or
encumbrances on the organization's assets.
21. All financial instruments have been appropriately recognized and measured in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant assumptions used in arriving
at fair value of financial instruments are reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances.
22. Where the value of any asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made
in the financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to you.
23. The inventories as set out in the financial statements represent all of the inventories to
which the organization held title as at the balance sheet date. Inventories do not include
any goods consigned to SCRD, merchandise billed to customers or any items for which the
liability has not been provided in the books. Appropriate provisions have been made for
obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.
24. The employee future benefit costs, assets and obligation have been determined,
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards. The source data and plan provisions provided are complete and accurate.
The plans included in the valuation are complete. The determination of the discount
rate and the use of specific actuarial assumptions are our best estimate assumptions. We
feel that the extrapolations are accurate and have properly reflected the effects of
changes and events occurring subsequent to the most recent valuation that had a
material effect on the extrapolation.
General Representations
25. The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed
in the financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that
the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material
to the financial statements.
26. There were no direct contingencies or provisions (including those associated with
guarantees or indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any
substantial commitments, whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of
business, which would materially affect the financial statements or financial position of
SCRD, except as disclosed in the financial statements.
27. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have
been discussed with legal counsel. Since there are no outstanding or possible claims, no
disclosure is required in the financial statements.
28. We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held
at year end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements.
29. We have disclosed to you all significant customers and/or suppliers of the organization
who individually represent a significant volume of business with the organization. We are
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of the opinion that the volume of business (sales, services, purchases, borrowing and
lending) done by SCRD with any one party is not of sufficient magnitude that
discontinuance would have a material negative effect on the ongoing operations of the
organization.
30. There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.
31. We confirm that operating segments are appropriately identified and disclosed in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
32. No significant matters, other than those disclosed in the financial statements, have arisen
that would require a restatement of the comparative financial statements.
33. We have made the following additional significant representations to you during the
course of your audit which we understand that you have relied upon:


All tangible capital assets and inventory have been recorded and additions for the
year are complete and accurate. Amortization based on the expected useful life
of the tangible capital asset and residual value is our best estimate for the
consumption of a portion of the tangible capital asset for the year. Where the
value of any tangible capital asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision
has been made in the financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to
you.

Yours truly,

___________________________________
Signature

_______________________________
Position

___________________________________
Signature

_______________________________
Position
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APPENDIX D – Management Letter
Direct Line: 604-443-4716
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca
April 15, 2015
Mr. John France, Chief Administrative Officer
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC
V0N 3A1
Dear Mr. France:
As your external auditors, we are engaged to provide an audit opinion on your year end financial
statements. An external audit requires testing of transactions and balances and review of those
internal control systems upon which we may place reliance. A positive opinion on the financial
statements does not necessarily mean that your internal control systems are all operating
effectively. This is because we review only those internal control systems where we feel that
failure in those systems could result in a material error on the financial statements. With those
systems that we do review, our focus is on the assertions necessary to meet our financial
statement audit objectives.
Our review of systems, transactions and balances as well as discussions with staff at various levels
gives us a unique insight into your operations. While conducting this work we make note of items
that come to our attention where we feel that improvement could be made or alternatives could
be considered. We are fortunate in that we work with a great number of clients and observe a
wide variety of processes. We see firsthand any procedures that are emerging as best practices.
As matters come to our attention, we make note of these for subsequent follow-up. For minor
matters we discuss directly with the staff involved. More important matters are brought forward
in this letter (known as a “management letter”).
It is worth noting that we have management letter comments for virtually all audits of all clients.
The existence of points does not mean that there are significant problems with your systems or
staff. They are just recommendations to make good systems better.
Status of Prior Year Recommendations
1. Contaminated Sites (SCRD)
We had previously mentioned to you the new public sector accounting standard that comes
into force in 2015 known as “Liabilities for Contaminated Sites”. This standard requires that
a government entity record a liability in regard to any properties that are not in use where
there is environmental contamination above the legal standard. Importantly, the standard
requires the government to methodologically review its properties to determine those
properties at risk, and potentially to conduct environmental testing on high-risk properties.
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The approach that this standard takes makes it quite onerous because of the requirement to
actively go beyond just what you are already aware of. It is expected that many local
governments will have no resulting ending liability under this standard, yet they will still have
to expend significant effort to be able to show this. Because of the requirement to determine
inventory of properties, review the history of those properties, and potentially engage
external experts in the process; this is not something that can be left to the last minute.
Your staff are aware of these new standards and have developed preliminary plans for
completing its requirements. We encourage them to get a start on this early in the fiscal
year.
We are pleased to report that SCRD has continued with their preliminary testing and
investigation for the implementation of PS3260 “Liability for Contaminated Sites” and that
they will be in a position to record and disclose any liabilities should the need arise for fiscal
2015 adoption.
Current Year Observations
1. Review of Investments (SCRD)
During the audit, we noted that there is no formal review and sign off of the investment
account reconciliation, prepared by Accounting Technician III, each month. While there is a
quarterly review performed by the Board, with the growing number of investments held in
various institutions, there is a risk that errors could go undetected for a number of months
which could impact investment decisions.
Recommendation
We recommend that a formal monthly review process be adopted, and that evidence of the
monthly review be maintained.
Management Comments
This has been implemented for 2015.

With regards to the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District there were no prior year
recommendations or current year observations to report on.
This communication is prepared solely for the information of management and those charged
with governance and is not intended for any other purposes. We accept no responsibility to a
third party who uses this communication.
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We would like to express our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance which we received
from Tina Perreault, Jackie Day, Brad Wing and the rest of the Finance Department during the
course of the audit.
We shall be pleased to discuss with you further any matters mentioned in this letter at your
convenience.
Yours truly,

Bill Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/
cc Board of Directors
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Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

on
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The financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Sunshine Coast Regional
Hospital District. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

es

The financial statements include, where appropriate, estimates based on the best judgment of
management. The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District maintains systems of internal accounting
and administrative controls of high quality, consistent with reasonable cost.

rp

os

Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant,
reliable and accurate, and that Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District's assets are appropriately
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

pu

The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District reviews and approves the annual
financial statements.
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_____________________________ Treasurer
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Signed by:

di

_____________________________ Chair
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Date: April 23, 2015
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Tel: 604 688 5421
Fax: 604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
600 Cathedral Place
925 West Georgia Street
Vancouver BC V6C 3L2 Canada

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District

on
ly

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District,
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statements of
Operations, Changes in Net Financial Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

es

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

rp

os

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

pu

Auditor’s Responsibility
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Opinion

AF

T

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

D

R

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of
the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations,
change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
April 23, 2015
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2014
2013

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and equivalents

$

Portfolio investments (Note 4)

45,716

3,495,672

20,640

561,872

5,122,135

5,414,424

on
ly
164,334

438,888

11,104,689

11,801,370

es

Long-term debt (Note 5)

1,356,880

5,055,779

Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$

11,269,023

12,240,258

$ (6,146,888) $ (6,825,834)
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Net Financial Debt and Accumulated Deficit (Note 6)

________________________

Frank Mauro

Treasurer

D

R

Tina Perreault

_________________________

Chair

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Change In Net Debt
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
Fiscal Plan
2014
(Note 7)
Annual surplus (deficit)

2014

$ (2,344,032) $

Net debt, beginning

(6,825,834)

678,946
(6,825,834)

2013

$ (2,153,097)
(4,672,737)

$ (9,169,866) $ (6,146,888) $ (6,825,834)
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Net debt, ending

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
Fiscal Plan
2014
(Note 7)
Revenue
Grants in lieu of taxes

$

$

1,066

$

1,328

1,823,717

1,823,718

1,827,679

Investment income

30,000

58,991

80,801

Other revenue

-

157,577

127,268

2,041,352

es

1,855,017

on
ly

Tax requisitions

1,300

Actual
2013

Actual
2014

109,313

109,313

113,275

744,794

744,588

744,794

465,669

206,199

534,958

os

Expenses
Administration (Note 3)

rp

Debt charges - interest

pu

Minor capital
Bank charges and interest

ss
i
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Funded grants to hospital

Accumulated Deficit, beginning of year

427

327

2,879,273

-

301,879

2,796,819

4,199,049

1,362,406

4,190,173

(2,344,032)

(6,825,834)

678,946

(6,825,834)

(2,153,097)

(4,672,737)

$ (9,169,866) $ (6,146,888) $ (6,825,834)
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Accumulated Deficit, end of year
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Annual Surplus (Deficit)

2,037,076

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
4

30

Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
2014

2013

Operating Transactions:

678,946 $ (2,153,097)

$

Annual Surplus (Deficit)
Items not involving cash included in annual surplus (deficit):
Non-cash item- actuarial investment earnings

Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable
(Decrease) Increase in accrued payables

(154,133)

(127,268)

541,232

(495,939)

on
ly

(274,555)

Total Operating Transactions

791,490

es

Investing Transactions:
Decrease (Increase) in portfolio investments

os

(1,560,107)

(542,547)

rp

Financing Transactions:
Debt sinking fund contributions

(1,311,164)

pu

Total Increase (Decrease) in cash

on

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year

$

(5,754,194)

7,567,944

(542,547)
1,271,203

85,677

45,716 $ 1,356,880
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Cash and equivalents, end of year

1,356,880

(2,977,890)

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

1.

Operations:

The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District is responsible for financing and funding of capital activities
relating to St. Mary's Hospital.
Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

on
ly

2.

Revenue recognition:

es

Sources of revenue are recorded on an accrual basis and recognized in the period in which they
are earned.

(b)

pu

rp

os

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they meet the definition of an asset, have been
authorized and the taxable event occurs. Annual tax requisitions are recorded as taxes for Hospital
District services in the year they are requisitioned.
Expense recognition:

Cash and equivalents:

ss
i

(c)

on

Operating expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the period in which they are incurred.

Portfolio investments:

or

(d)

di
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u

Cash consists of cash on hand, cash in transit, and cash on deposit. Cash equivalents are short-term
investments made to obtain a return on a temporary basis and are carried at cost.

-f

Investments consist of marketable securities which are carried at cost but written down when there has
been a permanent decline in value.

T

Government transfers:

AF

(e)

3.

D

R

Grants and transfers are recorded as expenses when the transfer is authorized and eligibility criteria
have been met by the recipient.

Related Party Transactions:

The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District is related to the Sunshine Coast Regional District since
the same individuals are members of the Board of Directors of both organizations. As legislated by the
Hospital District Act, the officers and employees of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District are the
corresponding officers and employees of the Sunshine Coast Regional District. Each of the Hospital
District and Regional District are separate legal entities as defined by separate Letters Patent and
authorized by separate legislation. In 2014, the Hospital District paid, at cost, to the Sunshine Coast
Regional District an amount of $109,313 (2013 - $113,275) for general accounting and administration
services provided to the Hospital District. These transactions are recorded at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.
6
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Portfolio Investments:

2014
Municipal Finance Authority 1

3,074,461

Sunshine Coast Credit

Union 3

330,000

Financial 4

1,216,392

es

BlueShore

on
ly

Raymond James

434,926 $

$

2

5,055,779 $

241,631
2,708,813
545,228
3,495,672

os

$

2013

1

Municipal Finance Authority investments are held in a CIBC Mellon Money Market Fund with an average yield of 1.11%. These include
tax requistion funds, debt reserve payouts, and sinking fund surplus payments to be used for future capital projects.
2

pu

rp

Raymond James investments are held in a portfolio of various fixed income investments with interest rates ranging from 1.40% to 1.82%
for the purpose of the St. Mary's expansion project and regular Hospital District operations.
3

Sunshine Coast Credit Union investment is held in a term deposit with an interest rate of 1.90% for the purpose of regular Hospital
District operations.
4
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BlueShore Financial investments are held in term deposits with interest rates ranging from 1.65% to 1.70% for the purpose of the St.
Mary's expansion project and regular Hospital District operations.
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The fair market value of the portfolio investments approximates the carrying value (including accrued
interest of $65,204) of the various investments, based on the quoted year-end market bid prices.

D

4.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Long Term Debt:

All long term debt is issued through the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia. The Authority is
the borrowing agent for municipalities and regional districts in the province of British Columbia. All
debenture debt issued by Municipal Finance Authority is sinking fund debt.

Issue

Interest Rate

on
ly

Sinking fund debentures issued through the Municipal Finance Authority:

2013

2014

Issued in 1999, maturing in 2019

3.15 % $

95

Issued in 2005, maturing in 2015

4.17 %

102

Issued in 2007, maturing in 2027

4.82 %

81,510 $

os

71

es

(a)

95,906
87,310

10,980,311

11,618,154

rp

42,868

pu

$ 11,104,689 $ 11,801,370
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Future principal repayments on existing long-term debt:
2015

2016

sc
u

2017
2018

di

2019

703,300
731,515
760,861
791,386

-f

$ 11,104,689

T

Actuarial earnings:

AF

Long term debt is recorded net of any sinking fund balances. Actuarial sinking fund earnings in 2014 was
$154,133 (2013 - $127,268)

R

(b)

721,997

7,395,630

or

Thereafter

$

D

5.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Accumulated Deficit:

Fund Balances:
Current fund

Reserve fund
2

Amount representing cumulative funded grants

os

to hospital less related debt repaid

3

305,352

631,160

466,595

2,045,968

2,003,116

$

(9,206,095)

(9,600,897)

(6,146,888) $

(6,825,834)

pu

rp

Accumulated Deficit, end of year

2013

382,079 $

es

Capital fund

$

1

on
ly

2014

1

on

This amount of tax requisition funds, debt reserve payouts and sinking fund surplus payments received from the Municipal
Finance Authority were recorded in a reserve fund to be used for future capital projects. During 2014, the Hospital District
contributed $189,863 from the Current Fund and other earnings of $6,876 from MFA investment earnings and MFA cash
distribution. Reserve funds of $32,175 were used for funding additional minor capital projects at St. Mary's Hospital.
2
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These amounts will be recovered from future requisitions for debt repayment.
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In 2014, revenue earned from capital investments held for the purpose of the St. Mary's Hospital Expansion project was
$42,852 (2013- $61,762).

D

6.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

7.

Fiscal Plan:

The 2014 Fiscal Plan was approved by the Board through the adoption of By-Law No. 83 on March 6,
2014. The Fiscal Plan includes items not shown on the statement of operations as identified below:
2014

Fiscal Plan surplus for the year:
Fiscal Plan funding sources that are not revenues for accounting
purposes:

os

Transfer from Section 20 reserves-roof projects

Transfer from Section 20 reserves-carry over (minor capital equipment)

(67,290)

(154,879)
(2,879,273)

pu

rp

Funded grants to hospital

-

es

$

on
ly

Fiscal Plan

Fiscal Plan expenditures that are not expenses for accounting
purposes:

sc
u

Transfer to appropriated capital surplus

25,000
$

(2,344,032)

di

Fiscal Plan Deficit

189,863

ss
i

Transfer to reserves

or

Commitments:

AF

T
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Vancouver Coastal Health is expanding and renovating the facilities at St. Mary’s Hospital. The original
project cost was $39,750,000. The project cost has been revised to $44,150,000 with a 2016 estimated
completion date of which the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District share of the cost remains at
$15,900,000. On July 26, 2007, Capital Expenditure and Borrowing Bylaw No. 76 was enacted to borrow
up to $16,183,200 including issuing expense and debt reserves, with a 20 year term.

R

In 2014, $301,879 was expensed for the hospital expansion project and in 2013, $2,796,819.

D
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542,547

on

Principal debt payments
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ANNEX B
SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
March 26, 2015
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF THE SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL
HOSPITAL DISTRICT HELD IN THE BOARDROOM AT 1975 FIELD ROAD, SECHELT, B.C.
PRESENT:

Chair

F. Mauro

Directors

L. Lewis
M. Lebbell
I. Winn
A. Lutes (Alt.)
S. White

ALSO PRESENT:

Treasurer
Manager, Legislative Services
Recording Secretary
Public
Press

T. Perreault
A. Legault
T. Crosby
0
1

CALL TO ORDER

11:02 a.m.

AGENDA

It was moved and seconded

19/15

THAT the agenda for the meeting be adopted as amended.
CARRIED

MINUTES
Minutes

It was moved and seconded

20/15

THAT the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Board Meeting
Minutes of February 26, 2015 be adopted as circulated.
CARRIED

REPORTS
Annual Budget

It was moved and seconded

21/15

THAT the Treasurer’s report titled “2015 Sunshine Coast Regional
Hospital District (SCRHD) Annual Budget and Vancouver Coastal
Health (VCH) Cost Share Request” be received;
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AND THAT the 2015 SCRHD Budget be approved as presented;
AND THAT the SCRHD fund the proposed Closed Loop Medication
System 40% cost share in the amount of $547,894 from reserves;
AND THAT staff contact VCH to determine their cash flow
requirements for this project prior to the April 23, 2015 SCRHD
Board meeting ;
AND FURTHER THAT the SCRHD request that any further
payments to VCH be split with 50% funded prior to August 1 and the
remaining after August 10, 2015.
CARRIED
COMMUNICATIONS
Name Change

It was moved and seconded

22/15

THAT the correspondence and news release from Vancouver Coastal
Health (VCH) regarding St. Mary’s Hospital name change to Sechelt
Hospital be received;
AND THAT a letter be sent to VCH to ask how the St. Mary’s
Hospital name change will be funded and how the name change will
affect both the St. Mary’s Hospital Auxiliary and St. Mary’s Hospital
Foundation;
AND FURTHER THAT this letter be copied to the St. Mary’s
Hospital Auxiliary and the St. Mary’s Hospital Foundation.
CARRIED

Cost Share

It was moved and seconded

23/15

THAT the correspondence from Mike Nader, Chief Operating
Officer, Coastal Community of Care, Vancouver Coastal Health
(VCH) regarding confirmation of 60% VCH funding of total
$1,369,734 for clinical equipment required to implement the Closed
Loop Medication Management, Bedside Closed Loop Medication,
and Computerized Physician Order Entry (SPOE) at St. Mary’s
Hospital be received.
CARRIED
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Cost Share

It was moved and seconded

24/15

THAT the correspondence from Ron Nelson, Chair, St. Mary’s
Hospital Foundation regarding confirmation of $500,000 funding
toward the Closed Loop Medication System be received.
CARRIED

BYLAWS
Bylaw 84

It was moved and seconded

25/15

THAT “Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Annual Budget
Bylaw No. 84, 2015" be read a first time.
CARRIED

Bylaw 84

It was moved and seconded

26/15

THAT “Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Annual Budget
Bylaw No. 84, 2015" be read a second time.
CARRIED

Bylaw 84

It was moved and seconded

27/15

THAT “Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Annual Budget
Bylaw No. 84, 2015" be read a third time.
CARRIED

Bylaw 84

It was moved and seconded

28/15

THAT “Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Annual Budget
Bylaw No. 84, 2015" be adopted.
CARRIED
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The Board moved In-Camera at 11:17 a.m.
IN CAMERA

It was moved and seconded

29/15

THAT the public be excluded from attendance at the meeting in
accordance with the Community Charter Section 90(1) (k)
“negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed
provision of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages
and that, in the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to
harm the interests of the municipality if they were held in public”.
CARRIED

The Board moved out of In-Camera at 11:19 a.m.
ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded

30/15

THAT the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Board meeting
be adjourned.
CARRIED
The meeting adjourned at 11:19 a.m.

Certified correct _______________________________
Secretary
Confirmed this ____________day of_______________

________________________________
Chair
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ANNEX C
SCRHD STAFF REPORT
DATE:

April 9, 2015

TO:

Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Board – April 23, 2015

FROM:

Tina Perreault, Treasurer

RE:

SCRHD DRAFT AUDITED STATEMENTS – YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

RECOMMENDATION(S)
THAT the Treasurer’s report regarding SCRHD Draft Audited Statements – Year Ended
December 31, 2014 and the following documents, presented as part of the BDO Delegation
be received:




BDO Engagement & Planning Letter
Independent Auditor’s Report
Draft Audited Financial Statements;

AND THAT the Draft Audited Statements for Year Ended December 31, 2014 be approved
as presented.

BACKGROUND
At the January 22, 2015, the Corporate and Administrative Committee received BDO’s “Audit
Planning Communication,” summarizing the plans and other matters pertinent to the 2014 audit
for the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District (SCRHD) as well as the Sunshine Coast
Regional District (SCRD), which is attached for receipt from the SCRHD.

DISCUSSION
Canadian Public Sector Accounting & Auditing Standards require the Financial Statements to be
presented as soon as possible after the March audit, as draft statements. Once approved, this
date will become the date of the Independent Auditor’s Report and Final Audited Statements for
Year Ended December 31, 2014.

SUMMARY
Staff recommend that the Draft Audited Statements for Year Ended December 31, 2014, being
presented by BDO with Independent Auditor’s Report, be received and approved by the
Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital Board for approval.
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300 Canada LLP
600 Cahedra Pace
925 West Geora Street
Vrccuver SC V5C 3L2 Canada

Direct Line: 604-443-4716
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca
December 11, 2014
Ms. Tina Perreault
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt BC VON 3A1
Dear Ms. Perreault:
Thank you for requesting our firm to audit the financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional
District, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the
Statements of Operations, Changes in Net Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. Our audit will be
conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial statements.
Our Role as Auditors
Conduct of the Audit
At the conclusion of our audit, we will submit a report directed to the Board of Directors
containing our opinion on the financial statements. If it appears for any reason that we will not
be in a position to render an unqualified opinion on the financial statements, we wiLl discuss this
with you.
We wiLl conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian generalLy accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we compLy with ethical requirements and plan to perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit aLso includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overalL financial statement presentation.
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal
control, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected,
even though the audit is properly pLanned and performed in accordance with Canadian generalLy
accepted auditing standards.
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal controL relevant to the entitys preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entitys internal control. However, we wilt communicate to you in writing
concerning any significant deficiencies in internal control relevant to the audit of the financiaL
statements that we have identified during the audit.
During the course of our audit, if we identify the following matters, we wilt communicate them
to the appropriate level of management and the Board of Directors:
•

misstatements, other than trivial errors;

• fraud;
•
•

misstatements that may cause future financial statements to be materially misstated;
illegal or possibly illegal acts, other than ones considered inconsequential;

BOo Canada LLP, a Canadian im1td abty partrershp, s a rnembr f OO Intrnation& Lirite1, a
< company rnted by
arantee, and forms part of the hternetonal BOO network of independent rnamber firms.
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• significant weaknesses in internal control; and
• certain reLated party transactions.
We will also make notes of any other matters that we beLieve shouLd be brought to your
attention and will communicate them to you. These might incLude comments on internal control
procedures, management information systems, accounting poLicies and other cLient service
matters. Audits do not usually identify alL matters that may be of interest to management in
discharging its responsibilities. The type and significance of the matter to be communicated wiLL
determine the LeveL of management to which the communication is directed.
Throughout the audit we wilL aLso be communicating with the Board of Directors on matters that
bear on independence, matters that pertain to pLanning and executing our audit and any other
matters in addition to those identified in the preceding paragraphs that we feeL should be
brought to their attention as required by Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Role of Management and Council
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and those charged with governance
acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:
(a) For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards;
(b) For such internaL controls as management considers necessary to enable the preparation of
the financiaL statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; and
(c) To provide us with:
•

access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other
matters;

•

additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the
audit; and

•

unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, where appropriate, those
charged with governance written confirmation concerning representations made to us in
connection with the audit.
Fraud and Error

Management is also responsible for the following with respect to fraud and error:
•

the design and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and error;

•

an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a
result of fraud;

•

providing us with information relating to fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity
involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, or others,
where the fraud couLd have a material effect on the financial statements;
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•

providing us with information relating to any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting
the entitys financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others; and

•

communicating their belief that the effects of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements aggregated during the audit are immateriaL, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that policies are in place for effective
corporate governance, and to ensure that all unusual and material transactions during the year
are properly approved.
We look forward to full cooperation from your staff during our audit.
Reporting

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Unless unanticipated difficulties are encountered, our report will be substantiaLly in the form
outLined in Appendix 1. Should there be unforeseen circumstances, the report may differ from
that attached.
Tax Services

If other tax services, such as tax planning, GST/PST advice, etc. are required, we wilL confirm
them with you as they arise.
To the extent that such additional services are not covered by a separate engagement letter, the
terms of this engagement letter shall apply to those additional services which you request.
Our audit is conducted primarily to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements.
Accordingly, the audit process may not detect situations where the municipality is incorrectly
collecting GST/PST or incorrectly claiming input tax credits, unless material. As you are aware,
failure to properly account for the GST/PST could result in you or your municipality becoming
liable for tax, interest or penalties. These situations may also arise for provincial sales tax,
custom duties, and excise taxes.
Standard Terms and Conditions

A copy of our Standard Terms and Conditions is enclosed in Appendix 2. You should ensure that
you read and understand these as they contain important terms including those in connection
with the scope of the Engagement, your responsibilities, fees, use of our advice and our liability.
The Standard Terms and Conditions form part of the Engagement Letter. Should any of the
terms included in the Standard Terms and Conditions conflict with any of the other terms in this
letter, the latter will prevail.
You expressly agree and understand that the terms in the Engagement Letter apply to all
services provided by us pursuant to the Engagement, whether such services were performed or
provided before or after the signing of the Engagement Letter. The Engagement Letter will
remain in place and fully effective until varied or replaced by written agreement between us.
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If you have any questions about the terms of this engagement, please do not hesitate to contact
us. Please sign and return the attached copy of this Letter to indicate your acknowLedgement of,
and agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financiaL statements including our
respective responsibilities.
It is a pleasure for us to be of service and we Look forward to many years of association with you.
Yours truLy,

Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn

Agreement of aLL the above terms, after fuLL review, consideration and discussion of them, is
hereby acknowledged by:

Sunshine Coast Regional District

Signature

Position

Date

Signature

Position

Date
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Appendix I
Form of Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Sunshine Coast Regional District
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional District,
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the
Statements of Operations, Changes in Net Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting poLicies and other expLanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsibLe for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian pubLic sector accounting standards, and for such
internaL control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from materiaL misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we compLy with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internaL control reLevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financiaL statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal controL. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financiaL statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financiaL
position of Sunshine Coast RegionaL District as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its
operations, changes in net debt, and cash fLows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
Date
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Appendix 2
Standard Terms and Conditions
Introduction

Practice Inspections

Unless otherwise specificalLy agreed in the Engagement
Letter, the Engagement Letter replaces any previous
agreements between us in relation to or in contemplation
of the Engagement and shall apply to any future
engagements we carry out on your behalf unless varied or
replaced. The Engagement Letter (which includes these
Standard Terms and Conditions) constitutes the entire
agreement between us. In entering into this Engagement
Letter you acknowledge that you have not relied on, and
shall have no right or remedy in respect of, any statement,
representation, assurance or warranty (whether made
negligently or innocentLy) other than as expressly set out in
the Engagement Letter.

As required by legal, regulatory or professional authorities
(both in Canada and abroad) or by firm policy, our client
files must periodically be reviewed by practice inspectors
to ensure that we are adhering to professional and firm
standards. We will proceed on the basis that we have your
consent to provide our files relating to your engagement to
these practice inspectors for the sole purpose of their
inspection.

Independence

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to
be independent, in both fact and appearance, with respect
to Sunshine Coast Regional District in the performance of
our services. We will communicate in writing to the Board
of Directors any relationships between BDO Canada LLP
(including its related entities) and Sunshine Coast Regional
District (including its related entities) that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear
Further, we will confirm our
on our independence.
independence in writing.
Conflict of Interests

We provide a wide range of services for a large number of
clients and may be in a position where we are providing
services to clients in the same industry as you who may
represent competing commercial interests to you or whose
interests may otherwise conflict with your own. We cannot
be certain that we wilt identify all such situations that exist
or may develop, and it is difficult for us to anticipate all
situations that you might perceive to conflict.
We
therefore request that you notify us promptly of any
potential conflict affecting the engagement contract of
which you are, or become, aware.
Where the above circumstances are identified by us or you
and we believe that your interests can be properly
safeguarded by appropriate procedures, we will discuss and
agree with you the arrangements that already may exist or
that we will put in place to preserve confidentiality and to
ensure that the advice and opinions which you receive from
us are wholly independent of the advice and opinions that
we provide to other clients.
Confidentiality

We will maintain the strictest confidence with respect to
any client’s or former client’s information. Accordingly,
your confidential information will not, without your
consent, be disclosed to any individuals in our firm beyond
those who are in the local office through which you
engaged our services and those individuals from other
offices who are involved in performing services for you.
Nor will it be disclosed without your consent to anyone
outside the firm, with the exception that we proceed on
the basis that we have your consent to disclose information
required by judicial, regulatory or professional authority.

Other Matters
Personal Information

It is acknowledged that we will have access to all personal
information in your custody that we require to complete
our engagement.
Our services are provided on the
understanding that:
•

you have obtained any required consents for
collection, use and disclosure to us of personal
information required under applicable privacy
legislation; and

•

we will hold all personal information
compliance with our Privacy Statement.

in

Electronic Communications

During the course of our audit, we may be required to
communicate to you electronically by email or through the
Internet. In some instances, electronic copies of your
financial statements may be sent to you electronically or
may be required by a regulatory body. As you are aware,
there is security risk attached to these electronic
communications (including human error).
Please
communicate with us regarding any issues or concerns you
may have in this regard.
Dispute Resolution Procedures

If any dispute, controversy or claim arises in connection
with the performance or breach of this agreement, either
party may, upon written notice to the other party, request
facilitated negotiations. Such negotiations shall be assisted
by a neutral facilitator acceptable to both parties and shall
require the best efforts of the parties to discuss with each
other in good faith their respective positions and,
respecting their different interests, to finally resolve such
dispute.
Limitation of Liability

In any dispute, action, claim, demand for losses or damages
arising out of the services performed by BDO Canada LLP
pursuant to this engagement, BDO Canada LLP shall only be
liable for its proportionate share of the total liability based
on degree of fault as determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction or by an independent arbitrator as a result of
the dispute resolution procedures discussed previously,
notwithstanding the provisions of any statute or rule of
common law which create, or purport to create, joint and
several liability.
Our liability shall be restricted to damages of a direct and
compensatory nature and shall not include indirect,
consequential, aggravated or punitive damages, or damages
for loss of profits or expected tax savings.
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Sole Recourse and Other BDO Member Firms
This engagement is between you and BDO Canada LLP only.
The provisions of this clause shalL only apply where, and to
the extent, permitted by applicable laws.

by your municipality, failing which, the matter
may be referred to dispute resolution in
accordance with the terms of this letter.
Propriety of Working Papers

If one of our affiLiates carries out any work for you in
relation to the services to which this engagement applies,
our affiliates will do so as a subcontractor of BDO Canada
LLP. BOO Canada LLP shalL remain the contracting party
and shall be the sole entity that is responsible to you,
including for the work carried out by any of our affiliates.

The working papers prepared in conjunction with our audit
are the property of our firm, constitute confidential
information and will be retained by us in accordance with
our firms policies and procedures.

ALso, where appropriate, we may use other BDO Member
Firms to assist us with the services to which this
engagement applies. Notwithstanding the fact that the
services may be carried out by other BDO Member Firms
assisting us as supplemental providers of services and as
subcontractors of BOO Canada LLP (“B DO subcontractors”),
you agree that BDO Canada LLP shall have sole liability for
both its acts and/or omissions and also all acts and/or
omissions of any BOO subcontractors and you agree that
you shalL bring no claims or proceedings of any nature
whatsoever (whether in contract, tort, breach of statutory
duty or otherwise) against any BDO subcontractors or BOO
International entities (including, without limitation, BDO
International Limited and Brussels Worldwide Services
BVBA) or other BDO Member Firms in any way arising from,
in respect of or in connection with the services or this
engagement.

The examination of the financial statements and the
issuance of our audit opinion are solely for the use of
Sunshine Coast Regional District and those to whom our
report is specifically addressed by us.

These exclusions shall not apply to any liability, claim or
proceeding founded on an allegation of fraud or wilful
misconduct or other liability that cannot be excLuded under
applicable Laws.
It is agreed that, unLess otherwise specified, the Limitation
of Liability and indemnification provisions in this
engagement shall apply equally to BDO Canada LLP, our
affiliates and any BOO sub contractors we may involve in
the Services.
You agree that any of our affiliates and any BOO
subcontractors whom we may involve in the services or BOO
International entities or other BOO Member Firms shall each
have the right to rely on and enforce the paragraphs above
as if they were parties to this engagement.
Indemnity
Your municipality hereby agrees to indemnify, defend (by
counsel retained and instructed by us) and hold harmless
BDO Canada LLP and its partners, agents or employees,
from and against any and all losses, costs (including
solicitors’ fees), damages, expenses, claims, demands or
liabilities arising out of or in consequence of:
•

•

the breach by your municipality, or its directors,
officers, agents or employees, of any of the
covenants made by your municipality herein,
including, without restricting the generality of
the foregoing, the misuse of, or the unauthorized
dissemination of, our audit report or the financial
statements in reference to which the audit report
is issued, or any other work product made
available to you by our firm; and
the services performed by BOO Canada LLP
pursuant to this engagement, unless, and to the
extent that, such losses, costs, damages and
expenses are found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to have been due to the negligence
of BDO Canada LLP. In the event that the matter
is settled out of court, we will mutually agree on
the extent of the indemnification to be provided

Use and Distribution of Our Report

BOO Canada LLP makes no representations of any kind to
any third party in respect of these financial statements and
we accept no responsibility for their use by any third party.
If reproduction or publication of our report is planned in an
annual report or other document, including electronic
filings or posting of the report on a web site, a copy of the
entire document should be submitted to us in sufficient
time for our review before the publication or posting
process begins.
Should the municipality wish to include the financial
statements referred to above and our report thereon in a
document proposed to be used in connection with a public
or private offering of securities at some future date, please
contact us immediately. We will consider our consent to
the inclusion of our report in such a document at that time.
Fees
Our professional fees will be based on our regular billing
rates which depend on the means by which and by whom
our services are provided. We also will bill you for our outof-pocket expenses, our internal charges for certain
support activities, and applicable Goods and Services Tax
and Provincial Sales Tax.
Our internal charges are
calculated at 5.0% of our professional fees and represent an
allocation of estimated costs associated with general office
services such as computer usage, telephone charges,
facsimile transmissions, postage and photocopying. Fees
for additional services will be established separately. Our
fees are due when rendered.
Interest will be charged on all overdue accounts at the rate
of 1% per month (12% per annum).
International BDO Network
The firm is a member of the BOO international network.
This network comprises independent firms (which use
“BOO” as part of their business name) in many countries.
These firms are associated BOO entities, but are separate
Legal entities.
No associated BOO entity is our agent or partner, and no
associated BDO entity has authority to enter into any Legal
obligations on our behalf. If we introduce you to an
associated BOO entity we do not accept any Liability for
work that they carry out on your behalf and you must make
your own contractual arrangements with them directly.
We are not the agent or partner of any associated BOO
entity and we do not have authority to enter into any legal
obligations on their behalf.
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Force Majeure

We wilt not be liable for any delays or failures in
performance or breach of contract due to events or
circumstances beyond our reasonable control, including
acts of God, war, acts by governments and regulators, acts
of terrorism, accident, fire, flood or storm or civil
disturbance.
Severability

In the event that any part of these Terms of Business and
the Engagement Letter of which they form part is held to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder will continue in
full force and effect.
Governing Laws and Termination

The above terms of our engagement shall remain operative
until amended, terminated or superseded in writing. They
sha[l be interpreted according to the laws of the Province
of British Columbia and the laws of Canada applicable
therein, and any disputes arising from this engagement
shall be referred to the courts of British Columbia, which
shall have exclusive jurisdiction.
It is possible that we may determine that we cannot render
a report or complete the engagement.
If, in our
professional judgment, the circumstances require, we will
notify you of our resignation from this engagement which
shall conform to all applicable laws.
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Tei: 6046385421
Fax: 604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

3DOCanadaLL?
600 Cathedrai Piace
925 West Georgia Street
Varcouver SC V6C 3L2 Carada

December11, 2014
Members of the Boards
Sunshine Coast Regional District and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC VON 3A1
Dear Board Members:
We are pleased to present our audit plan for the audit of the financial statements of the
Sunshine Coast Regional District (“SCRD”) and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
(“SCRHD”) for the year ended December 31, 2014.
Our report is designed to highlight and explain key issues which we believe to be relevant to
the audit including audit risks, the nature, extent and timing of our audit work and the terms
of our engagement. The audit planning report forms a significant part of our overall
communication strategy with the Board and is designed to promote effective two-way
communication throughout the audit process. It is important that we maintain effective twoway communication with the Board throughout the entire audit process so that we may both
share timely information. The audit process will conclude with a Board meeting and the
preparation of our final report to the Board.
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Board and should not be distributed
without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibiLity to a third party that uses
this communication.
The Board plays an important part in the audit planning process and we look forward to
meeting with you to discuss our audit plan as well as any other matters that you consider
appropriate.
Yours truly,

Bill Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn

Sunshine Coast Regionat District
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BDO Ca,ada LLP, a Canadian Limited liability partnership. is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ENGAGEMENT LETTER
The terms and conditions of our engagement are included in the most recent engagement
letter, dated December 11, 2014
RESPONSBILTIES
It is important for the Board to understand the responsibilities that rest with the external
auditor and the responsibilities of those charged with governance. BDO’s responsibilities are
outlined within the annual engagement letter.
The oversight and financial reporting
responsibilities of the Board as they pertain to the annual audit are summarized below.
•

Oversee the work of the external auditor engaged for the purpose of issuing an
independent auditor’s report.

•

Report on all nonaudit services to be provided to the SCRD and SCRHD by the external
auditor.

•

Facilitate the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor
regarding financial reporting matters, if any.

•

Refer to Appendix E for full details on the responsibilities of the Board.

ENGAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
•

Express an opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position, results of operations, changes in its net debt, and cash
flows of the SCRD and SCRHD in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards
(“PSAS”).

•

Present significant findings to the Board including key audit and accounting issues, any
significant dehciencies in internal control and any other significant matters arisng from
our work.

•

Provide timely and :onstructive management letters. This wiLt include deficiencies in
internal control identified during our audit. (See Appendix K for prior year’s management
letter.)

•

Consult regarding accounting, indirect taxes and reporting matters as requested throughout
the year.

•

Read the other information included in the SCRD’s Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies, if any, with the audited financial statements.

Sunshine Coast Regional District
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AUDIT STRATEGY
Changes in auditing standards now require auditors to document all significant manual and
computer systems. Building on this, we plan to focus much of our review of transaction
streams using “tests of controls” (compliance procedures) in combination with analytical
review and testing. Balances will be tested using a combination of compliance procedures and
substantive procedures (such as analysis of data and obtaining direct evidence as to the validity
of the items).
Refer to Appendix B for a high leveL overview of our audit strategy.
MATERIALITY
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be
material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and include an
assessment of both quantitative and qualitative factors and can be affected by the size or
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.
For purposes of our audit, we have set preliminary materiaLity at $680,000 for the SCRD and a
preliminary performance materiality at $510,000. For the audit of the SCRHD, we have set
preliminary materiality at $83,000 and a preliminary performance materiality at $62,250.
Our materiality calculation is based on the SCRD and SCRHD’s prior year results. In the event
that actual results vary significantly from those used to calculate preliminary materiality, we
wilt communicate these changes to Board members as part of our year end communication.
We wiU communicate all corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified during our audit
to the Board, other than those which we determine to be “clearly trivial”. Misstatements are
considered to be clearly triviaL for purposes of the audit when they are inconsequential both
individually and in aggregate.
•We encourage management to correct any misstatements identified throughout the audit
process.
RISKS AND PLANNED AUDIT RESPONSES
Based on our knowledge of the SCRD and SCRHD’s operations, our past experience, and
knowledge gained from management and you, we have identified the following significant
risks; those risks of material misstatement that, in Our judgment, require special audit
consideration.
Significant risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them. We request your input on the
following key risks and whether there are any other areas of concern that the Board members
have identified.
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RISKS AND PLANNED AUDIT RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

Management Override of
Internal Controls

The SCRD and SCRI-ID’s current
internal control systems could
be subject to an override of
existing controls by
management resulting in
unauthorized transactions or
unauthorized adjustments to
the according records.

Review of significant
transactions recorded in the
various ledgers for unusual or
non -recurring adjustments not
addressed by other audit
procedures.

Other areas that may be considered higher risk are as follows:

Cash and Investments

Staff Salaries

Tangible Capital Assets
and Accumulated
Amortization

Cash planning and investment
management are iiiportant
aspects of good financial
controls.
Due to its nature, cash and
investments are almost always
considered to be a risk area in
any audit.
A significant single type of
expenditure that covers many
employees and departments. As
a municipality, this figure is
often of particular interest to
financial statement users
(taxpayers).

Our planned audit procedures
include review of
reconciliations, substantive
testing of transactions and
confirmations of end of period
balances. We will also review
reports on return and
investment strategies.
Application of computer audit
testing to analyze all payroll
transactions in the year is a key
step to identify unusual payroll
relationships for testing. We will
also perform systems testing,
tests of controls and analytical
review of staff salary and levels.

Almost 5 years have passed
since original estimates were
made of the useful lives of
tangible capital assets owned
by the SCRD and SC RI-ID and
estimates wilt need to be re
evaluated to determine if they
are still accurate. This involves
a high level of estimation and
coordination of the finance
depaitment with other
departments.

We will perform tests of
controls for appropriate
authorization of purchases
combined with substantive
testing of additions and
disposals in the year and
amortization calculations.
Useful lives of existing assets
will be reviewed for changes in
estimates, if applicable. Repairs
and maintenance ledgers wilL
also be reviewed for possible
capital items that have been
expensed.
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Liability for Landfill
Closure

A significant Uability that is
calculated based on
management assumptions and
engineering reports, Due to the
nature of the high Level of
estimates required and the
possibility of new information
becoming available this
calculation Uabitity is
considered a risk area.

We will evew cclatious
related to the liability recorded,
as well as review engineering
reports. We wi’l also perform an
audit of significant assumptions
used for the calculation.

FRAUD RISK
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Board
on an annual basis. We have prepared the fotI.owing comments to facilitate this discussion.

I
Details of existing
oversight
pi ocesses
with regards to fraud.

Knowledge of actual,
suspected or alleged
fraud.

Through our planning process, and based
on prior years’ audits, we have
developed an understanding of your
oversight processes including:
•

Annual Board meeting with
management to discuss fraud

•

Discussions
at
regular
Board
meetings and our attendance at
some of those meetings;

•

Review
of
transactions; and

•

Consideration of tone at the top.

reLated

Are there any new
processes or changes
in existing processes
relating to fraud that
we should be aware
of?

party

Currently, we are not aware of any
fraud.

Are you aware of any
instances of actual,
suspected or alleged
fraud affecting the
SCRD and SCRHD?

Refer to Appendix F for our considerations of possible fraud and illegal activities during the
performance of our audit.

FINAL ENGAGEMENT REPORTING
As part of our final reporting to the Board, we wilt provide a communications package to
support the Board in discharging their responsibilities. This communication wilt include any
identified significant deficiencies in internal controls. See Appendix H for a comprehersive iSt
of communication requirements throughout the audit.
Sunshine Coast Regional District
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OTHER MATTERS
The following schedule has been agreed to with management:
• Interim audit fieldwork
November 17
19, 2014 (completed
without issue)
• Year end audit fieldwork March 9 17, 2015
• Review of draft financial statements with the Board April 23,
2015
• Finalization of financial statements Immediately subsequent to
approval by Board members
Our annual independence letter has been included as Appendix G.
As part of our audit f
nahzation we will obtain written representation
1
from management, a copy of these representations will be included as
part of our final report.
Refer to Appendix 3 for changes in standards. The most significant
standards on the horizon include Contaminated Sites’ (effective for 2015)
and ‘Financial Instruments” (effective for 201 7).
-

-

-
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8II Cox, CPA, FCA

Engagement Partner

bcox@bdo ca

604.443,4716

Patrick Chan, CPA, CA

Audit Senior Manager

pchan@bdo.ca

604.443.4710

Jennifer Currie

Audit Senior

jcurrieAbdo.ca

604688.5421

Sarah Johnson

Audit Staff

Sjohflsofl@hdo.ca

604.688.5421

Jessica Don8

Audit Staff

jdong@bdo.ca

604.688,5421

Sunshine Coast Regional District

58

9

BDO

Our overalL audit strategy involves extensive partner and manager invoLvement in alL aspects of
the planning and execution of the audit and is based on our overalL understanding of the SCRD
and SCRHD.
We wilL perform a risk-based audit which allows us to focus our audit effort on higher risk areas
and other areas of concern for management and the Council.
To assess risk accurately, we need
to gain a detailed understanding of
the Town’s operations and the
environment it operates in. This
allows us to identify, assess and
respond to the risks of material
misstatement.
To identify, assess and respond to
risk, we obtain an understanding of
the system of internal control in
place in order to consider the
adequacy of these controls as a
basis for the preparation of the
financial statements. We then
whether
determine
adequate
accounting records have been
maintained and assess the adequacy
of these controls and records as a
basis upon which to design and
undertake our audit testing.
Based on our risk assessment, we design an appropriate audit strategy to obtain s... cient
assurance to enable us to report on the financial statements.
We choose audit procedures that we believe are the most effective and efficient to reduce
audit risk to an acceptably low level. The procedures are a combination of testing the

operating effectiveness of internal controls, substantive analytical procedures and other tests
of detailed transactions.
Having planned our audit, we wilt perform audit procedures maintaining an appropriate degree
of professional skepticism, in order to collect evidence to support our audit opinion.
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All facets of the SCRD and SCRHD’s internal controls including those governing the accounting
records, systems and financial statements will be impacted by the organization’s complexity,
the nature of risks, and the related laws, regulations, or stakeholder requirements. It is
management’s responsibility to determine the level of internal control required to respond
reasonably to the SCRD and SCRHD’s risks.
The preparation of the SCRD and SCRHD’s financiaL statements including all disclosures in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards is the responsibility of
management. Among other things, management is responsible for:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

8.
9.
10.
11.

Designing and implementing internal controls over financial reporting to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free of material misstatements;
Informing the SCRD and SCRHD’s auditors of any deficiencies in design or operation of
internal controls;
Updating the SCRD and SCRHD’s auditors for any material change in the SCRD and
SCRHD’s internal controls including if the individuals responsible for the controls that
have changed;
Identifying and complying with any laws, regulations, and/or agreements which apply
to the SCRD and SCRHD;
Recording any adjustments required to the financial statements to correct material
misstatements;
Safeguarding of assets;
Providing the auditor with all financial records, and related data which may be related
to the recognition, measurement and or disclosure of transactions in the financial
statements;
Providing accurate copies of aLL minutes of the regular and closed meetings of Board
members;
Providing timely, accurate information as requested for the completion of the audit;
AlLowing unrestricted access to persons or information as requested as part of the
audit;
Notifying the auditor of any circumstances which arise between the date the audit
work is completed and the approval date of the financial statements.

Representation Letter
We wilt make specific inquiries of the SCRD and SCRHD’s management about the
representations embodied in the financial statements and internal control over financial
reporting. During the completion of our audit documentation, we will. require management to
confirm in writing certain representations in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. These representations are to be provided to us in the form of a
representations letter which wit!, be provided as near as practicable to, but not after the date
of our auditor’s report on the financial statements.
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Our professional fee for the audit is based on careful consideration of the time required to
complete the required work. Circumstances may arise during the engagement which could
significantly impact the targeted completion dates and or the extent of work required to
complete the audit. As a result, additional fees may be necessary. Such circumstances
include, but are not Limited to, the following:
Significant Issues
1. Changes in the design or function of internal controls can impact the audit and result in
additional substantive testing;
2. Significant number of proposed adjustments which are identified during the audit work;
3. Significant changes are required to the format or information contained in the financial
statements;
4. New issues resulting from changes to:
a. Accounting standards, policies or practices
b. Special events or transactions which were not contemplated in the original
budget
c. The financial reporting process or systems involved
d. Accounting personnel or availability of accounting personnel
e. The requirement to include specialists in the audit work
5. Changes to the scope of the audit.
Audit Execution
1. Audit schedules are not provided in a timely manner, are not mathematically correct,
or do not agree to the underlying accounting records.
2. There are significant delays in responding to our requests for information or responses
require significant further investigation.
3. The quality of the supporting information for the audit work has deteriorated from our
previous experience.
4. A complete working paper package is not provided on the agreed upon date.
5, There is a limitation of access to the financial staff required to complete the audit.
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General Responsibilities
It is the Boards’s responsibility to provide oversight of the financial reporting process. This
incLudes management’s preparation of the financial statements, monitoring of the SCRD and
SCRHD’s internal, controls, overseeing the work of the external auditor, facilitating the
resolution of disagreements between management and the auditor, as well as the finaL review
of the financial. statements and other annual. reporting.
Significant Audit Findings
Based on the work we perform, any significant identified deficiencies in internal. control wit), be
reported to you in writing. The purpose of our audit is to express an opinion on the financial.
statements. While our audit includes a consideration of the internal control structure of the
Town, our work is focused on those controls relevant to financial reporting. As such, our work
was not designed to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls.
We will communicate our views regarding any significant qualitative aspects of the SCRD and
SCRHD’s accounting practices. This would include the selection and application of accounting
policies, estimates and financial statement disclosure. If during our audit we feel. that the
selected policies, estimates or disclosures are not appropriate for the SCRD and SCRHD under
its reporting framework, we wilt communicate these matters to the Board.
In addition, we will communicate:
•
•
•
•
•

Any significant difficulties which arose during the audit;
Any reasons identified which may cause doubt as to the SCRD and SCRHD’s ability
to continue as a going concern;
The written representations we will. request from management;
Any identified unadjusted misstatements;
Any identified or suspected fraudulent activities.
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We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud,
by:
•
•
•
•

dentifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
Obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate
responses; and
Responding appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error because fraud may
involve collusion, as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schemes designed to conceal
it.
During the audit, we wilL perform risk assessment procedures and related activities to obtain an
understanding of the entity and its environment, including the SCRD and SCRHD’s internal
controL system, to obtain information for use in identifying the risks of material misstatement
due to fraud and make inquiries of management regarding:
•
•

•
•

Management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated due to fraud, including the nature, extent and frequency of such
assessments;
Management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the SCRD
and SCRHD including any specific risks of fraud that management has identified or that
have been brought to its attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or
disclosures for which a risk of fraud is likely to exist;
Management’s communication, if any, to those charged with governance regarding its
processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the SCRD and SCRHD;
and
Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its view on business
practices and ethical behaviour.

n response to our risk assessment and our inquiries of management, we will perform
procedures to address the assessed risks, which may include:
•

•
•
•

Inquiring of management, members of the Board and others related to any knowledge
of fraud, suspected fraud or alleged fraud;
Performing disaggregated anaLytical procedures and considering unusual or unexpected
relationships identified in the planning of our audit;
Incorporating an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures; and
Performing additional required procedures to address the risk of management’s
override of controls including:
a
Testing internal, controls designed to prevent and detect fraud;

Sunshine Coast Reionat District

63

14

BDO
o

o

o

Testing the appropriateness of a sample of adjusting journal entries and other
adjustments for evidence of the possibiLity of material misstatement due to
fraud;
Reviewing accounting estimates for biases that couLd result in material
misstatements due to fraud, including a retrospective review of significant
prior years’ estimates; and
EvaLuating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.
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December11, 2014
Members of the Board
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechett, BC VON 3A1
Dear Board Members:
We have been engaged to audit the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District
(the “SCRD”) and the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District ( the “SCRHD”) for the year
ended December 31, 2014.
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) no Longer require that we communicate
formally to you in regard to Independence Matters, however we consider it to be a good
practice. As such, we are reporting to you regarding all relationships between the SCRD and
SCRHD (and its related entities) and our firm that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant
rules and related interpretations prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of British
Columbia and applicable legislation, covering such matters as:
•
•
•
•
•

Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;
Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to
exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;
Personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directLy or indirectly, with a client;
Economic dependence on a client; and
Provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We are not aware of any relationships between the SCRD and SCRHD and our firm that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be through to bear on our independence.

We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the SCRD and SCRHD within the
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
British Columbia as of the date of this letter.
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This Letter is intended soleLy for the use of Board members and management and should not be
used for any other purposes.
Yours truly,

BiLl Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation of
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn
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2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

20.
21.
22.

Our responsibilities under
Canadian GAAS
Our audit strategy and audit scope
Fraud risk factors
Going concern matters
Significant estimates or judgments
Audit adjustments
Unadjusted misstatements
Omitted disclosures
Disagreements with Management
Consultations with other
accountants or experts
Major issues discussed with
management in regards to
retention
Significant difficulties encountered
during the audit
Significant deficiencies in internal
control
Material written communication
between BDO and Management
Any relationships which may affect
our independence
Any illegal acts identified during
the audit
Any fraud or possible fraudulent
acts identified during the audit
Significant transactions with
related parties not consistent with
ordinary business
Non-compliance with laws or
regulations identified during the
audit
Limitations of scope over our audit,
if any
Written representations made by
Management
Any modifications to our opinion, if
required

V
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V
V
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V
V
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OTHER BDO SERVICES
BDO Solutions provides accounting software management tools need to run a
better operation. Our expert team understands the complex reporting
requirements government eritites must adhere to, as welt as the limited
resources they have to address these needs. Spend more time serving your
constituents, better manage budgets, allocate time and resources more
effectively and improve your ability to focus on the work that really matters to
your organization.
For more information, please visit the following Link:
http: / /www.bdosotutions.corn /ca/
Having a strong strategic plan, such as a succession plan for key employees and
strategic planning for the Board, is critical to an organization’s success. With
our succession planning services, we can help your organization with:
•
•
•
•

Planning for a change in leadership
Setting a strategic direction for the Board
Develop a strategic business plan for operations
Aligning all three groups of stakeholders (Board, employees and
members) and enhancing communication

For more information, please visit the following link:
http: / /wwwbdo.ca/en/Services/Advisory/Business
Transition / pages/default.aspx
As Canada’s leading financial advisory firm, BDO helps organizations and their
management teams effectively assess, develop and manage strategic
initiatives.
Visit the following link to find out more:
http: / /www.bdo. ca/en/Services/Advisorv/ FinanciaLAdvisory! pages/defauLt.aspx
Our dedicated team of professional bookkeepers across Canada combined with
our powerful Microsoft cLoud technology platform can provide you and your
organization with a world class bookkeeping solution that gives you anytime
access to your financial information. Our BDO Client Portal provides you with
access to comprehensive business management functionality and enables you
to make proactive and informed decisions for your organization.
Visit the Link below to find out how we can create a customized bookkeeping
solution for your organization:
http: / /www.bdo. ca/en /Services/Outsourcing/ Bookkeeping! pages! default.aspx
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Government Entities operating in Canada are impacted by commodity taxes in
some way or another. These include GST/HST, QST, PST, various employer
taxes, and unless managed property, can have a significant impact on your
organization’s bottom line.
The rules for Government Entities can be
especially confusing, and as a result many organizations end up paying more
for indirect tax then they need to.
Government Entities must keep on top of changes to ensure they are taking
advantage of the maximum refund opportunities. At BDO, we have helped a
number of organizations of all sizes with refund opportunities, which can
reduce costs for the organization and improve overall financial health.
For more information, please visit the following link:
http: / /www.bdo.ca/en/Services/Tax/lndirect-Tax/pages/defautt.aspx
BDO PULICATIONS

BDO’s national and international accounting and assurance department issues publications on
the transition and application of Public Sector Accounting Standards. In addition, we offer a
wide array of publications on Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises (ASPE), International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit organizations
(ASNPO).
For addtional information on PSAS, including links to archived publications and model financial
statements, refer to the link below:
http: I / www. bdo. ca/en I library! services/assurance-and-accountingjpages/default.aspx.

MYPDR
Cass is in session! Meeting Your Professional Development Requirements (MYPDR) is an
educational program designed to support our clients, contacts and alumni in achieving their
ongoing professional development requirements.
Through the MYPDR program, we are committed to providing timely, relevant topics that can
support you in meeting your ongoing professional development needs. For more information on
the MYPDR program or to register, please visit http://www.cvent.com/d/34qgxp.
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The following summarizes the status of new standards and the changes to existing standards
as of the fall of 2014. The Appendix also reviews Exposure Drafts, Consultation Papers,
Invitations to Comment, Issue Papers and Statements of Principles that provide information on
the future direction of CPA Public Sector Accounting Handbook.
NEW STANDARDS

-

PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARD (PSAS)

Section PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites
-

This new Section estabLishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for Liabilities
reLating to contaminated sites of governments and those organizations appLying the CPA Public
Sector Accounting Handbook.
This section applies to government assets no longer in productive use and non-government
assets for which the government is responsibLe. It does not appLy to tangible capital assets
(however, the PSAB GAAP hierarchy would require consideration of Asset Retirement
Obligations in regard to tangible capital assets).
The main features of the new Section are as follows:
•

A liability should be recognized when contamination exceeds an accepted
environmental standard and the entity is directly responsible, or accepts responsibility
for, the damage;

•

A liability should be measured at the entity’s best estimate of the costs directly
attributable to remediation of the contamination; and

•

Outstanding site assessments do not negate the requirement to assess whether a
liability exists.

This Section is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014. Earlier adoption
is encouraged. For entities with a December year end this means that 2015 is the first year that
the standard must be followed. An entity should begin to consider immediately how it will
apply with this standard. Organizations are to apply PS 2120 if adoption of PS3260 results in a
change in accounting policy. This means that there is a choice about whether to apply
prospectively or retrospectively.
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NEW STANDARDS

-

PSAS (NOT YET EFFECTPIE)

Section PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation
This Section revises and replaces FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, Section PS 1200. The
following changes have been made to the Section:
•

Remeasurement gains and losses are reported in a new statement;

•

Other comprehensive income that can arise when a government includes results of
government business enterprises and government business partnerships in its summary
financial statements is reported in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses;
and

•

The accumulated surplus or deficit is presented as the total of the accumulated
operating surplus or deficit and the accumulated remeasurement gains and losses.

The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS 3450 Financial Instruments
and PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation and for government organizations are effective for
fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. n the case of governments, the new
requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2016. Earlier adoption
is permitted.
-

-

Section PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation
This Section revises and replaces PS 2600, FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION. The following
changes have been made to the Section:
•

The definition of currency risk is amended to conform to the definition in PS 3450
&INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS;

•

The exception to the measurement of items on initial recognition that applies when
synthetic instrument accounting is used is removed;

•

At each financial statement date subsequent to initial recognition, non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency that are included in the fair value category in
accordance with Section PS 3450 are adjusted to reflect the exchange rate at that
date;

•

The deferral and amortization of foreign exchange gains and losses relating to longterm foreign currency denominated monetary items is discontinued;

•

Until the period of settlement, exchange gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of remeasurement gains and Losses rather than the statement of operations;
and

•

Hedge accounting and the presentation of items as synthetic instruments are removed.

-

The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS 3450, FJNANCAL INSTRUMENTS
and PS 1201, FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION and for government organizations are
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of governments, the
new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2016. Earlier
adoption is permitted.
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Section PS 3041, Portfolio Investments
This Section revises and replaces Section PS 3040, PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS. The following
changes have been made:
•
•
•

•

The scope is expanded to include interests in pooled investment funds;
Definitions are conformed to those in FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, Section PS 3450;
The requirement to apply the cost method is removed, as the recognition and
measurement requirements within Section PS 3450 apply, other than to the initial
recognition of an investment with significant concessionary terms; and
Other terms and requirements are conformed to Section P5 3450, including use of the
effective interest method.

This section is to be applied at the same time as PS 3450, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, PS 2601
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION and PS 1201, FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION and for
government organizations are effective for fiscaL years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In
the case of governments, the new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after ApriL 1, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted.
Section PS 3450

-

Financial Instruments

PSAB approved amendments to Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments, to align the reporting of
income on externally restricted assets that are financial instruments with the requirements in
Section PS 3100, Restricted Assets and Revenues. The amendments clarify the application of
Section PS 3100 (paragraphs PS 3100.11 .12) when accounting for:
-

•

A change in the fair value of a financial asset in the fair value category that is
externally restricted;

•

Income attributable to a financial instrument that is externally restricted; or

a

A gain or loss associated with a financial instrument that is externally restricted.

These amendments recognize the importance of the nature of restrictions and the terms of
contractual agreements in reporting such transactions and events when externally restricted

assets and income are involved.
This new Section establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and non-financial derivatives.
The main features of the new Section are:
•

Items within the scope of the Section are assigned to one of two measurement
categories: fair value, or cost or amortized cost;

•

Almost alt derivatives, including embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract, are measured at fair value;
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•

Fair value measurement also applies to portfolio investments in equity instruments that
are quoted in an active market;

•

Other financial assets and financial Liabilities are generally measured at cost or
amortized cost;

•

Until an item is derecognized, gains and losses arising due to fair value re
measurement are reported in the statement of re-measurement gains and tosses;

•

Budget-to-actual comparisons
measurement gains and losses;

•

When the reporting entity defines and implements a risk management or investment
strategy to manage and evaluate the performance of a group of financial assets,
financial liabilities or both on a fair value basis, the entity may elect to include these
items in the fair value category;

•

New requirements clarify when financial liabilities are derecognized;

•

The offsetting of a financial liability and a financial asset is prohibited in absence of a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; and

•

New disclosure requirements of items reported on and the nature and extent of risks
arising from financial instruments.

are

not

required

within

the

statement

of

re

The new requirements are to be app(ied at the same time as PS 2601, FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSLATION and PS 1201, FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION and for government
organizations are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of
governments, the new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2016. Earlier adoption is permitted. This Standard should be adopted with prospective
application except for an accounting policy related to embedded derivatives within contracts,
which can be applied retroactively or prospectively.
Note also the exposure draft “Financial Instruments: Transition” (discussed below) that
proposed clarification of some detailed aspects of the Financial Instruments standard.
EXPOSURE DRAFTS

-

PSAS

Amendments to the Introduction (Closed for Comment)
PSAB proposes to amend the introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards to clarify the
applicability of the CPA PSA Handbook for various public sector entities.
Related Party transactions (Closed for Comment)
Exposure draft issued by the PSAB to propose the issue of two new sections, RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES and INTER-ENTITY TRANSACTIONS. The main features of the exposure draft are
as follows:
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
•

A related party exists when one party has the ability to exercise control or shared
control over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are subject to
common control or shared control. Related parties also include individuals that are
members of key management personnel and close family members.

•

Disclosure of key management personnel compensation arrangements, expense
allowances and other similar payments routinely paid in exchange for services rendered
is not required.

a

Two entities that have a member of key management personnel in common may be
related depending upon that individual’s ability to affect the policies of both entities in
their mutual dealings.

•

Disclosure is only required when transactions and events between related parties have
or could have a material financial effect on the financial statements.

•

Determining which related party transactions to disclosure is a matter of judgment
based on the assessment of certain factors

INTER-ENTITY TRANSACTIONS
•

Inter-entity transactions involving the transfer of assets or liabilities should be
recognized by both a provider and a recipient at carrying amount, exchange amount or
fair vaLue depending on the particular circumstances of each case.

•

Inter-entity transactions in the normal course of operations or under a policy of cost
allocation and recovery should be recognized on a gross basis at the exchange amount.

•

A recipient may recognize unallocated costs as a revenue and expense at carrying
amount, fair value or another amount based on existing policy, depending on the
particular circumstances of each case.

a

Information about inter-entity transactions would be disclosed in accordance with the
proposed new Section on related party disclosures.

Restructurings (Closed for Comment (assuming dated after Nov 28, 2014))
Exposure draft issued by the PSAB to propose the issue of a new section, RESTRUCTURING
TRANSACTIONS. The main features of the exposure draft are as follows:
•

A restructuring transaction is defined separately from an acquisition. The key
distinction between the two is the absence of an exchange of consideration in a
restructuring transaction.

•

A restructuring transaction is defined as a transfer of an integrated set of assets and/or
liabilities, together with related program or operating responsibilities, that does not
involve an exchange of consideration.

•

Individual assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring transaction are
derecognized by the transferor at their carrying amount and recognized by the

recipient at their carrying amount with applicable adjustments.

•

The increase in net assets or net liabilities resulting from recognition and derecognition
of individual assets and liabilities received from at!. transferors, and transferred to all
recipients in a restructuring transaction, is recognized as revenue or as an expense.

•

Restructuring-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.
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•

Individual assets and liabilities received in a restructuring transaction are initially
classified based on the accounting policies and circumstances of the recipient at the
restructuring date.

•

The financial position and results of operations prior to the restructuring date are not
restated.

•

Disclosure of information about the transferred assets, liabilities and reLated
operations prior to the restructuring date by the recipient is encouraged but not
required.

Assets, Contingent Assets and contractual rights (Closed for Comment)
Exposure draft issued by the PSAB to propose the issue of three new sections, ASSETS,
CONTINGENT ASSETS and CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS. The main features of the exposure draft are
as follows:
ASSETS
•

Additional guidance en the definition of assets is provided.

•

Disclosure of types of assets that are not recognized is required.

CONTINGENT ASSETS
•

Contingent assets are defined.

•

Disclosure of contingent assets is required when the occurrence of the confirming
future event is likely.

CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS
•

Contractual rights are defined.

•

Disclosure of contractual rights is required.

Financial Instruments: Transition (Open for Comment until January 15, 2015)
Exposure draft that deals technical details related to the standard by providing two
amendments and a few clarifications.
The first amendment proposed definitively states that unless a contractual right or contractual
obligation underlies a receivable or a payable, the Financial lnstruments standard does not
apply. There must be a contract for there to be a financial instrument.
The second amendment removes a correct, but redundant, paragraph that notes the Financial
Instrument Standard does not apply to a receivable under a lease.
Clarifications are made in areas related to transfer of collateral pursuant to a credit risk
management mechanism in a derivative contract, treatment of unamortized discounts or
premiums related to debt buy-backs, associated unamortized discount or premium on initial
adoption, and derivatives not recognized or recorded at fair value on initial adoption.

These detailed technical changes Will likely have most impact to senior governments and it is
not expected that many local goverr.ments wilt be affected.
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CONSULTATION PAPERS

-

PSAB

Characteristics of Public Sector Entities (Consultation Paper 1) (Closed for Comment)
The objective of this project is to review and amend, if necessary, the conceptual framework
in PS 1000, FINANCIAL STATEMENT CONCEPTS, and PS 1100, FINANCIAL STATEMENT OBJECTIVES
with respect to measurement of financial performance. This review could also affect PS 1201,
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION.
Measuring Financial Performance in Public Sector Financial Statements (Consultation
Paper 2) (Closed for Comment)
The objective of this project is to review and amend, if necessary, the concepts underlying
financial performance in the existing public sector conceptual framework in FINANCIAL
STATEMENT CONCEPTS, Section PS 1000, and FINANCIAL STATEMENT OBJECTIVES, Section PS
1100. This review could also affect FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, Section PS 1201.
STATEMENTS OF PRINCIPLES

-

PSAB

Asset Retirement Obligations (Closed for Comment)
The PSAB proposes in this statement of principles a new section on retirement obligations
associated with tangible capital assets controlled by a public sector entity. The statement
includes retirement obligations associated with tangible capital assets resulting from legal,
constructive and equitable obligations which include post-retirement operation, maintenance

and monitoring. Retirement costs would increase the carrying amount of the related tangible
capital asset or a component thereof and would be expensed in a rational and systematic
manner. The subsequent remeasurement of the liability can result in either a change in the
carrying amount of the related tangible assets or a component thereof, or an expense,
depending on the nature of the remeasurement or whether the asset remains in productive
use. Often the best method with which to estimate the liability is a present value technique.
Not-for-Profit Organizations (Closed for Comment)

This statement of principles provides 15 key principles in areas related to:
•

Revenue recognition

•

Long-lived assets

•

Controlled entities

•

Financial statement presentation

Important principles in the area of revenue recognition include removal of both the deferral
and restricted fund methods of accounting for revenue from contributions. Revenue would now
be recognized as soon as the entity controls the related asset (note that this would preclude
the recording of pledges receivable). The only exception to immediate recognition of revenue
from contributions is when the transfer agreement contains a stipulation that creates a
liability. In this case, revenue would be recorded as the liability is extinguished.
Principles in the area of long-lived assets harmonize the approach to accounting for impairment
of such assets. Private sector NPO accounting rules had an “all or nothing” approach meaning
Sunshine Coast Regionai District
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that a long-lived asset was either not impaired or fully impaired and written off. These
principles would now harmonize private sector accounting rules with PSAB which allows for a
partial impairment model.
Accounting for controlled entities will also be mostly harmonized between private and public
sector NPOs. Private sector NPOs will have to consolidate all controlled entities with only two
exceptions:
•

f there is a large number of individually immaterial controlled entities (such as Girl
Guide groups)

•

If the controlled entity is profit-oriented (in which case it would be accounted for on
the equity basis)

Principles in the area of financial statement presentation require that both private sector and
public sector NPOs would have to present their expenses by function in the Statement of
Operations and by object in the notes to the financial statements. Public sector NPOs would
use the “Net Debt” model of presentation on their Statement of Financial Position, but private
sector NPOs would continue to use their existing modeL.
Revenue (Closed for Comment)
PSAB proposes in this statement of principles to focus on two areas of revenue which are
exchange and unilateral (non-exchange) transactions with the presence of performance
obligations being the distinguishing feature. Performance obligations are enforceable promises
to provide goods or services. Revenue from an exchange transaction is recognized as the
performance obligation is satisfied whereas unilateral transactions are recognized when there
is the authority and past event that gives rise to a claim of economic recourses.
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STATUS OF CURRENT PROJECTS

Article I.

-

PSAB

Active Projects
lExpected Release Date
2014/201 5
IIQ1
[Q4

Standards for public sector entities
Asset Retirement Obligations

IlExposure Draft
iHandbook
Release

I

I

Assets

1

((Q2

Consultation
Paper

Concepts Underlying Financial Performance

[No Set Date

Fiscal Sustainability (Research project)
impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Not-for-Profit Organizations

IProject on Hold
INo Set Date
I
‘Handbook
Release
IHandbook
Release

PSA Handbook Terminology
Related Party Transactions

j

andbook
1
H
jiRelease
IlExposure Draft

Restructurins

H

Revenue

(AASB)
NEW STANDARDS AUDITING AND ASSURANCE STANDARDS BOARD
-

CAS 610, Using the Work of internal Auditors

es when determining whether
CAS 610 has been revised to address the auditor’s responsibiliti
guidance for auditor’s to use
The
rs.
audito
l
and how to use the direct assistance from interna
financial statements for the
of
for
audits
ve
effecti
is
rs
the direct assistance of internal audito
periods ending on or after December 15, 2014.
from an Audit or Review
CSRS 4460, Reports on Supplementary Matters Arising

Engagement
of information reported to a
This new Related Services Standard establishes the various types
n in this sector for funders,
commo
is
It
).
bodies
g
third party (for example, regulators or fundin

the auditor or accountant
regulators, or other governments to require specific reporting from
or accountant to expand
(known as “derivative reports”). This standard requires the auditor
of reports requested by
types
g
the I.evel of work required in many cases. Many of the existin
under these new
signed
be
to
be
able
funders, regulators or other governments would not
be issued in its
would
g
wordin
rd
standa
using
report
ed
proposals. Instead, a more fully explain
2016.
1,
April
after
or
on
dated
reports
for
ve
place. This standard will be effecti

Snshre Coast

78

gone Dstct

29

EXPOSURE DRAFTs

-

AAS8

Reporting on Audited Financial Statements (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft proposing a new international Standard on Auditing (ISA)
701, Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report; and revising ISA
260, Communication with Those Charged with Governance; ISA 570, Going Concern; ISA 700,
Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements; iSA 705, Modifications to the
Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report; ISA 706, Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and
Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report; and conforming amendments to
other SAs, issued by the international Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB). The
result would be new and revised respective Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs).
Financial Statement Disclosures (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft related to the audit of financial statement disclosures to
obtain clarification of the existing requirements. They are proposing to revise ISA 200, Overall
Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
International Standards on Auditing; ISA 210, Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements; ISA
240, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements; ISA
260, Communication with Those Charged with Governance; ISA 300, Planning an Audit of
Financial Statements; ISA 315, Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement
through Understanding the Entity and Its Environment; ISA 320, Materiality in Planning and
Performing and Audit; ISA 330, The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks; ISA 450, Evaluation
of Misstatements Identified during the Audit; and ISA 700, Forming an Opinion and Reporting
on Financial Statements.
Responsibilities Relating to Other Information (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft to revise iSA 720, The Auditor’s Responsibilitie5 Relating to
Other Information in Documents Containing or Accompanying Audited Financial Statements
and the Auditor’s Report Thereon, including:
•

the proposed expansion of the auditor’s responsibilities beyond that necessary for the
audit of the financial statements; and

•

definitions of “other information” and “annual report”, which scope in information
made available to the auditor after the date of the auditor’s report.

Standards for Assurance Engagements (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft proposing to adopt nternationat Standard on Assurance
Engagements (SAE) 3000, Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information as Canadian Standards on Assurance Engagements (CSAE) 3000,
Attestation Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
to issue a new CSAE 3001, Direct Engagements. CSAE 3001 wilL be based on CSAE 3000 but

wouW be revised, as necessary, to reflect the differences between attestation engagements
and direct engagements.
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PROJECTS AASB
-

The AASB wilt continue to discuss issues on this topic, with a goat of issuing an exposure draft
in early 2015.
COMMUNICATIONS WITH LAW FIRMS
The AASB is conducting a project to revise the “Joint Policy Statement Concerning
Communications with Law Firms Regarding Claims and Possible Claims in Connection with the
Preparation and Audit of Financial Statements” appended to CAS 501, Audit Evidence
Specific Considerations for Selected Items, including:

—

•

•
•

whether the revised Joint Policy Statement should include illustrations of how the
evaluation of claims and possible claims under different financial reporting frameworks
could be described in the inquiry Letter or whether such illustrations should be issued
separately as non-authoritative guidance;
whether any consequential amendments would be necessary to CAS 501; and
what the effective date of the revised Joint Policy Statement should be and whether
early implementation should be permitted.

The AASB reviewed a draft revised Joint Policy Statement, with a goat of approving an exposure
draft at its September 2014 meeting.
Special Reports

—

Assurance an Compliance with Agreements, Statutes and Regulations

The AASB is conducting a review to revise Sections 5800, Special Reports Introduction, 5815,
Audit Reports on Compliance with Agreements, Statutes and Regulations,
Special Reports
8100, General Review Standards, and 8600, Reviews of Compliance with Agreements and
Regulations, including:
—

—

•
•
•

•
•

how the standard would interact with umbrella assurance standards;
how material non-compliance with specified provisions of an agreement, statute or
regulation should be defined and addressed in such engagements; and
how the practitioner would consider materiality when planning and performing the
engagement (in particular, in situations when the matter being reported on is
qualitative rather than quantitative in nature).
whether a standard, an Assurance and Related Services Guideline or some form of nonauthoritative guidance should be developed; and
if a standard is to be developed, the content of that standard and its relationship with
the umbrella assurance standards.

The AAS3 will continue to discuss issues on this topic, with a goal of approving an exposure
draft in the first half of 2015.
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PPENDIX, K
Prior Year Man

ApriL 16, 2014
Mr. John France, Chief Administrative Officer
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 FieLd Road
Sechelt, BC
VON 3A1
Dear Mr. France:
Re:

Auditor’s Management Letter

During the course of our audit of the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional
District for the year ended December 31, 2013, we identified matters which may be of interest
to management. The objective of an audit is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of any material misstatement and it is not designed to identify
matters that may be of interest to management in discharging its responsibilities. Accordingly
an audit would not usuaLly identify all such matters.
The responsibility for producing financial statements and ensuring adequate internal controls
and sound business practices is the responsibility of the Board through management and is a
part of managements overall responsibility for the ongoing activities of the organization.
Policies and procedures developed by the organization to safeguard its assets and to provide
reasonable assurance that errors and irregularities or illegal acts are promptly identified, must
be properly monitored to ensure that all staff are complying with the guidelines provided.
The comments and concerns expressed herein did not have a material effect on the Sunshine
Coast Regional District’s financial statements and, as such, our opinion thereon was without
reservation. However, in order for the organization to ensure the safeguarding of its assets and
the accuracy of its records, we believe our comments and concerns ShOuld be taken into
consideration by management. Our comments are not intended to reflect upon the honesty or

competence of the organization’s employees.

The matters we have identified are discussed below.

Sunshne
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Status of Prior Year Recommendations
There were a few carry-forward points from the prior year’s management letter. We track
these points to ensure that recommendations are followed up and implemented (or
alternatively found to be impracticaL).
ommendations

It

Terminated Staff User Accounts
We noted last year that when District staff are
terminated, the IT department is not notified in a
timely manner so that they can deactivate the staff
accounts.

to note the
are pleased
We
implementation and usage of the HR
the
Action Form which reports
employee’s last day, This form is then
forwarded to IT so they can terminate
the employee’s access rights promptly.

The potential issue is that there could be staff
accounts within the active directory which are
indicated to be active even though the staff member
has already left employment from the District. This
raises the issue that termmated staff can log back
onto the District’s network.
We recommended that formal procedures are
implemented where HR notties IT through a written
termination request before the staff’s last day so
that IT can deactivate the staff’s account on the last
day of work.

Current Year’s Observations and Recommendations
1.

Early Adoption of Financial Instruments

Another set of new standards, known as the Financial Instruments Standards, are coming in
2016. These standards include: PS 3450 “Financial. Instruments” and related sections PS
1201 “Financial Statement Presentation”, PS 2601 “Foreign Currency Translation” and
PS 3041 “Portfolio Investments”.
-

-

-

-

Although not mandated until 2016, these standards can be elected to be adopted early.
We are encouraging some local government to consider early adoption along with a related
election to record their investments at fair value. There are two main reasons why we
believe this may he of value: first, the market value of investments is likely more relevant
to most users then the historical cost method in use currently; and secondly, the standards
require disclosure and analysis of risks related to financial instruments which we feel is
good information for the readers of the financial statements.
For your investments held in MFA pooled funds, it is believed that the market value
approximates the historical cost amount due to the nature of these funds and the continual
level of trading within the funds. The amounts related to these investments reported in
the financial statements would likely not change.
Sunshine Coast Regionat Distuct
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For your investments held in financial institutions, the fair value will likely be different
from the historical cost resulting in an adjustment at year end.
n addition to the adjustment of the investments to fair value, there wilL be expanded risk
disclosures.
We recommend that management consider whether there is value in early adopting these
standards in 2014 rather than waiting untiL the 2016 year.
Management Comments:
“Management is aware of the change in accounting standards (PS 3450
“Financial
Instruments” and related sections PS 1201 -“Financial Statement Presentation”, PS 2601
“Foreign Currency Translation” and PS 3041
“Portfolio Investments”) and are still
reviewing the disclosure requirements and impacts to the SCRD. Staff did not feel there
was any significant risk to the SCRD, as to its portfolio investment. Management is
targeting early adoption of these standards in 2015.”
-

-

-

2. Contaminated Sites

We have previously mentioned to you the new public sector accounting standard that
comes into force in 2015 known as “Liabilities for Contaminated Sites”. This standard
requires that a government entity record a liability in regard to any properties that are not
in use where there is environmentaL contamination above the Legal standard. !mportantly,
the standard requires the government to methodologically review its properties to
determine those properties at risk and potentially to conduct environmental testing on
high-risk properties.
The approach that this standard takes makes it quite onerous because of the requirement
to actively go beyond just what you are already aware of. It is expected that many local
governments will have no resulting ending liability under this standard, yet they will stilt
have to expend significant effort to be able to show this. Because of the requirement to
determine inventory of properties, review the history of those properties, and potentially
engage external experts in the process; this is not something that can be left to the last
minute.
Your staff are aware of these new standards and have developed preliminary plans for
completing its requirements. We encourage them to get a start on this early in the fiscal
year.
Management Comments:
Management has conducted a thorough review of all the SCRD owned properties to
determine those at risk and any that may require additional environmental testing, as it
relates to the disclosure requirements for “Liabilities for Contaminated Sites”. As a
result, only one property has been identified by management as a potential risk. Further
testing and investigation is required to verify if the site is contaminated. This
information and any disclosure associated will be ready for adoption in 2014.
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While our audit did not reveal any significant misstatements or irregularities, it is important to
understand that our audit procedures are designed specifically to gather sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to support our opinion on the financial statements and would not
necessarily uncover all errors or fraud, if present.
The scope of the audit did not include a detailed study of internaL controLs. However, we did
review those accounting systems and internal controls to the extent necessary to effectively
pLan and execute the audit. We found the accounting systems and records to be welt organized,
up to date and properly maintained.
We received excellent cooperation from everyone at the Sunshine Coast Regional District
during the audit. We thank Tina Perreault, Jackie Day, Brad Wing and all of the Finance
Department staff for their assistance in making the audit process as efficient as possibLe.
Please do not hesitate to contact us should you wish to further discuss any of the matters
discussed in this letter.
Yours truly,

t
Bill Cox, CPA, CA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn
c.c.

Board of Directors
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Sunshine Coast Regional District and Sunshine
Coast Regional Hospital District
Audit Results and Communications
Report to the Members of the Board
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014
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Tel: 604 688 5421
Fax: 604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
600 Cathedral Place
925 West Georgia Street
Vancouver BC V6C 3L2 Canada

Direct Line: 604-443-4716
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca

April 15, 2015
Members of the Board
Sunshine Coast Regional District and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC V0N 3A1
Dear Board Members:
We are pleased to present the results of our audits of the financial statements of the Sunshine
Coast Regional District (“SCRD”) and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District (“SCRHD”) for the
year ended December 31, 2014. The purpose of our report is to summarize certain aspects of the
audit that we believe to be of interest to the Board members and should be read in conjunction
with the draft financial statements.
Our audit and therefore this report will not necessarily identify all matters that may be of
interest to the Board members in fulfilling its responsibilities.
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Board members and should not be
distributed without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibility to a third party
that uses this communication.
We wish to express our appreciation for the co-operation we received during the audit from
SCRD’s management and staff that assisted us in carrying out our work. We look forward to
discussing the contents of this report and any other matters that you consider appropriate.
Yours truly,

Bill Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Audit Results

Our audit of the financial statements was designed to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.
A detailed description of our audit results has been included on page 8.

Status of Audits

Audit Risks

As of the date of this final report, we have substantially completed our
audits of the December 31, 2014 SCRD and SCRHD financial statements
pending the completion of the items highlighted below. These items will
need to be completed prior to issuance of our audit report on the
financial statements:


Receipt of the signed management representation letter



Subsequent events review through to financial statement approval
date



Approval of financial statements by the Board.

In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the
following areas that we identified as containing risks of material
misstatements:






Risk of Management Override
Cash and Investments
Staff Salaries
Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization
Liability for Landfill Closure

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these
risk areas, beginning on page 8 of this report.
Internal Control
Over Financial
Reporting

We did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal controls over
financial reporting during the year ended December 31, 2014 that we
considered to be material weaknesses.

Fraud and Illegal
Activities

We developed procedures within our audit plan as recommended by CAS
240 – The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of
Financial Statements.
Based on these procedures, we have not
encountered any illegal activities or fraudulent events with respect to
SCRD and SCRHD.

Significant
Events

As of the date of this letter, we have not identified any significant events
which we believe should be brought to your attention.

Significant
Accounting
Policies

SCRD and SCRHD’s significant accounting policies are listed in the
financial statements. We believe management’s selection of accounting
policies is appropriate under Canadian public sector accounting
standards.
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Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements and
are based on management’s current judgments. These judgments are
based on knowledge and experience about past and current events,
assumptions about future events and interpretations of the financial
reporting standards.
Our comments on the significant estimates included in the financial
statements are included on page 10 of this report.

Materiality, Audit
Adjustments and
Unadjusted
Differences

Our final materiality level for SCRD of $790,000 changed from our
planning materiality of $680,000 in our audit planning letter presented to
the Board Members on December 11, 2014.
Our final materiality level for SCRHD of $40,000 changed from our
planning materiality of $83,000 in our audit planning letter sent to the
Board Members on December 11, 2014.
There are no unadjusted misstatements for the year ended December 31,
2014.
There were no year-end audit adjustments.

Disclosures

There are no material omissions with respect to the disclosures in the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 that we have
noted.

Independence

We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to mitigate
threats to our independence. Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards (GAAS) no longer require that we communicate formally to you
in regard to independence matters; however, we consider it to be a good
practice. As such, we would report to you regarding all relationships
between SCRD and SCRHD and our firm that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We
confirmed our independence to the Board members for the year ended
December 31, 2014 in our Planning Report dated December 11, 2014. We
confirm that we are still independent as of the date of this letter.

Representation
Letter

A draft version of the representation letter to be signed by management
is included in Appendix C.

Conclusion

We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the financial statements
of the SCRD and SCRHD for the year ended December 31, 2014 once the
outstanding items referred to above are satisfactorily resolved and the
financial statements are approved the Board.
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INDEPENDENCE
At the core of the provision of external audit services is the concept of independence. Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) no longer require that we communicate formally to
you in regard to independence matters; however, we consider it to be a good practice. As such,
we would report to you regarding all relationships between SCRD, SCRHD and our firm that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We have
confirmed our independence to the Board Members for the year ended December 31, 2014 in our
Planning Report dated December 11, 2014. We confirm that we are still independent as of the
date of this letter.
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MATERIALITY
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be material if
they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
We communicated to you our planning materiality levels in our Planning Report to the Board
members. Our materiality levels, for SCRD, have changed slightly from our audit planning letter
presented to the Board members on December 11, 2014. Final materiality was $790,000 based on
2.0% of normalized revenues. This increase from planning materiality of $680,000 resulted from
differences between estimated and actual annual results for the year ended December 31, 2014.
As well, our materiality levels, for SCRHD, have changed from our audit planning letter presented
to the Board members on December 11, 2014. Final materiality was $40,000 based on 2.0% of
normalized revenues. This decrease from planning materiality of $83,000 resulted from
difference between estimated and actual results for the year ended December 31, 2014.
There were no corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified during our audit which we
determined to be above “clearly trivial”. Misstatements are considered to be clearly trivial for
purposes of the audit when they are inconsequential both individually and in aggregate.
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AUDIT FINDINGS
Based on our knowledge of SCRD and SCRHD’s operations, our past experience in this area, and
knowledge gained from management and the Board, we have identified the following significant
risks; those risks of material misstatement that, in our judgment, require special audit
consideration.
Significant risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them.
As part of our ongoing communications with you, we are required to have a discussion on our
views about significant qualitative aspects of SCRD and SCRHD’s accounting practices, including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures.

ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT MATTERS
Management Override of Controls
Risk

Approach

Results

Management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud
because of management’s
ability to directly or
indirectly manipulate
accounting records, and
prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding
controls that otherwise
appear to be operating
effectively.

We tested the
appropriateness of journal
entries recorded in the
general ledger and other
adjustments made in the
preparation of the
financial statements.

All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

[This risk is required for all
audits pursuant to Canadian
audit standards.]
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Cash and Investments
Risk
Due to its nature, cash and
investments are almost
always considered to be a
risk area in any audit.

Approach
We reviewed the year end
reconciliations and
obtained third party
confirmations.

Results
All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

Staff Salaries
Risk

Approach

Results

A significant single type of
expenditure that cover
many employees and
departments. As a
municipality, this figure is
often of particular interest
to financial statement users
(taxpayers).

We applied computer audit
testing to analyze all
payroll transactions in the
year. We performed system
testing, tests of controls
and analytical review of
staff salaries.

All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

Tangible Capital Assets and Accumulated Amortization
Risk

Approach

Results

More thant 5 years have
passed since original
estimates were made of the
useful lives of tangible
capital assets owned by the
District and estimates will
need to be re-evaluated to
determine if they are still
accurate. This involves a
high level of estimation and
coordination of the finance
department with other
departments.

We performed tests of
control for appropriate
authorization of purchases
combined with substantive
testing of additions and
disposals and amortization
calculations. Useful lives of
existing assets were
reviewed.

All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.
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Liability for Landfill Closure
Risk
A significant liability that is
calculated based on
management assumptions
and engineering reports.
Due to the nature of the
high level of estimates
required and the possibility
of new information
becoming available this
liability calculation is
considered a risk area.

Approach
We reviewed calculations
related to the liability
recorded, as well as
reviewed engineering
reports. We also performed
an audit of the significant
assumptions used for the
calculation.

Results
All audit testing in this area
was executed as planned and
no errors were noted.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
During the year, additional information became available about SCRD’s inventory of tangible
capital assets. This resulted in an increase to asset costs previously reported in SCRD’s financial
statements. Management has recorded the increase as a prior period adjustment and it is
discussed in note 3 of the financial statements. We have reviewed documentation provided to
substantiate the prior period adjustment and its effect on amortization in the comparative and
current year financial statements. Based on the audit work that we have performed, we believe
the accounting treatment of the increased asset value is appropriate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Management is responsible for determining SCRD and SCRHD’s significant accounting policies. The
choice between accounting policy alternatives can have a significant effect on the financial
position and results of the organization. The application of those policies often involves
significant estimates and judgments by management. Based on the audit work that we have
performed, it is our opinion that the estimates in the financial statements are reasonable and the
disclosures relating to accounting estimates are in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

UNADJUSTED DIFFERENCES
There were no significant unadjusted differences or disclosure omissions identified through the
course of our audit engagements for either, SCRD or SCRHD.

AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS
There were no year end audit adjustments for either, SCRD or SCRHD.
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MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATIONS
During the course of our audit, management made certain representations to us. These
representations were verbal or written and therefore explicit, or they were implied through the
financial statements. Management provided representations in response to specific queries from
us, as well as unsolicited representations. Such representations were part of the evidence
gathered by us to be able to draw reasonable conclusions on which to base our audit opinion.
These representations were documented in our audit working papers through memoranda of
discussions with management, as well as by written representations received from management.
A copy of the representation letter we have requested from management is included in Appendix
C of this report.
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FRAUD DISCUSSION
Canadian auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Board of Directors on an
annual basis. We discussed it in our Planning Report dated December 11, 2014. Currently, we
are not aware of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. If you aware of any instances of actual,
suspected or alleged fraud affecting SCRD or SCRHD since the date of our previous discussion,
please advise us at bcox@bdo.ca.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR DETECTING FRAUD
We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud.
The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error, because fraud may
involve collusion as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schedules designed to conceal
it.
During our audit, we performed the following procedures in order to fulfill our responsibilities:


Inquire of management, Board, and others related to any knowledge of fraud, suspected
fraud or alleged fraud;



Perform disaggregated analytical procedures and
relationships indentified in the planning of our audit;



Incorporate an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures; and



Perform additional required procedures to address the risk of management’s override of
controls including;

consider

unusual

or

unexpected

o

Testing internal controls designed to prevent and detect fraud;

o

Examine a sample of journal entries and other adjustments for evidence of the
possibility of material misstatement due to fraud;

o

Review accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatements
due to fraud, including a retrospective review of significant prior years’ estimates;
and

o

Evaluate SCRD and SCRHD’s rationale for significant unusual transactions.
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INTERNAL CONTROL MATTERS
During the course of our audit, we performed the following procedures with respect to SCRD and
SCRHD’s internal control environment:


Documented operating systems to assess the design and implementation of control activities
that were relevant to the audit.



Discussed and considered potential audit risks.

The results of these procedures were considered in determining the extent and nature of
substantive audit testing required.
We are required to report to you in writing, significant deficiencies in internal control that we
have identified during the audit. A significant deficiency is defined as a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control that, in the auditor's professional judgment, is of
sufficient importance to merit the attention of those charged with governance.
As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on SCRD and SCRHD’s financial
statements, our audit cannot be expected to disclose all matters that may be of interest to you
and, as a result, the matters reported may not be exclusive. As part of our work, we considered
internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such that we were able to
design appropriate audit procedures. This work was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control.

DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL
Deficiency

Issue and Impact

None noted.

None noted.

While there are no significant deficiencies in internal controls noted, we do take the opportunity
to comment on non-critical matters in our “management letter” that is included in Appendix D.
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APPENDIX A – Other Required Communication

Required Communication
1. Our responsibilities under
Canadian Auditing Standards
(CAS)

Audit Planning
Presentation


2. Our audit strategy and audit scope



3. Fraud risk factors



4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Audit
Results
Presentation

Going concern matters
Significant estimates or judgments
Audit adjustments
Unadjusted differences
Omitted disclosures
Disagreements with management








10. Consultations with other
accountants or experts



11. Major issues discussed with
management in regards to
retention
12. Significant difficulties encountered
during the audit



13. Significant deficiencies in internal
control
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Auditor
Comments
Included in our
engagement letter
dated December
21, 2014.
Included in our
Planning Report
which was
presented to the
Board of Directors
on December 11,
2015.
Included in our
Planning Report
which was
presented to the
Board of Directors
on December 11,
2015.
None.
See Page 10.
None noted.
None noted.
None noted.
There were no
disagreements with
management.
No external
experts were
consulted during
this engagement.
None.
No significant
difficulties were
encountered during
our audit.
No significant
deficiencies were
noted.
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Required Communication

Audit Planning
Presentation

14. Material written communication
between BDO and management

Audit
Results
Presentation


15. Any relationships which may affect
our independence
16. Any illegal acts identified during
the audit



17. Any fraud or possible fraudulent
acts identified during the audit







Auditor
Comments
No material
written
communications
were noted.
No independence
issues noted.
No illegal activities
identified through
the audit process.
No fraud identified
through the audit
process.
None noted.

18. Significant transactions with
related parties not consistent with
ordinary business operations



19. Non-compliance with laws or
regulations identified during the
audit



20. Limitations of scope over our audit,
if any



No legal or
regulatory noncompliance
matters were
noted as part of
our audit.
None.

21. Written representations made by
management



See Appendix D.

22. Any modifications to our opinion, if
required



Please see our
draft auditor’s
reports for SCRD
and SCRHD
included in
Appendix B.
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APPENDIX B – Draft Independent Auditor’s Report
(SCRD and SCRHD)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Chairperson and Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statements of Operations,
Change in Net Debt and Cash Flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the
Sunshine Coast Regional District as at December 31, 2014 and its results of operations, changes in net debt
and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
April 23, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Chairperson and Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statements of Operations,
Changes in Net Financial Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the
Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations, changes
in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
April 23, 2015
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APPENDIX C - Representation Letter
April 23, 2015
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
600 Cathedral Place
925 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3L2
Canada
Dear Sirs/Mesdames:
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
the Sunshine Coast Regional District (“SCRD”) for the year ended December 31, 2014, for the
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the results of operations
and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 of the Sunshine Coast Regional District in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
Financial Statements
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
dated December 11, 2014, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards; in particular the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance therewith.
2. Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value are reasonable.
3. Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Public sector accounting standards.
4. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which Public sector
accounting standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.
5. The financial statements of SCRD use appropriate accounting policies that have been
properly disclosed and consistently applied.
Information Provided
6. We have provided you with:
-

access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

-

additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and
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-

unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

7. We are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls
to prevent, detect and correct fraud and error, and have communicated to you all
deficiencies in internal control of which we are aware.
8. The minute books of the Board are a complete record of all meetings and resolutions of
the Board throughout the year and to the present date.
9. We have disclosed to you all significant matters contained in the minutes of all meetings
and resolutions of Board throughout the year and to the present date.
10. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.
11. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing financial statements.
12. We have identified to you:
-

guarantees;

-

indemnifications against damages, liabilities, costs, charges or expenses suffered or
incurred by officers or directors as a result of their service, and/or by any
subsidiaries; and

-

non-monetary transactions and transactions for no consideration.

13. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.
14. We are aware of the environmental laws and regulations that impact SCRD and we are in
compliance. There are no known environmental liabilities or contingencies that have not
been accrued for or disclosed in the financial statements.
Fraud and Error
15. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud, and have determined such
risk to be low.
16. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we
are aware of and that affects the entity and involves:
-

management;

-

employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

-

others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

17. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, analysts, regulators, or others.
18. We have reviewed and approved all journal entries recommended by the auditors during
the audit.
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19. The effects of unadjusted misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. A list of the uncorrected
misstatements is attached to the representation letter.
Existence, Completeness and Valuation of Specific Financial Statement Balances
20. All assets, wherever located, to which SCRD had satisfactory title at the year end, have
been fairly stated and recorded in the financial statements. There are no liens or
encumbrances on the organization's assets.
21. All financial instruments have been appropriately recognized and measured in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant assumptions used in arriving
at fair value of financial instruments are reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances.
22. Where the value of any asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision has been made
in the financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to you.
23. The inventories as set out in the financial statements represent all of the inventories to
which the organization held title as at the balance sheet date. Inventories do not include
any goods consigned to SCRD, merchandise billed to customers or any items for which the
liability has not been provided in the books. Appropriate provisions have been made for
obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.
24. The employee future benefit costs, assets and obligation have been determined,
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards. The source data and plan provisions provided are complete and accurate.
The plans included in the valuation are complete. The determination of the discount
rate and the use of specific actuarial assumptions are our best estimate assumptions. We
feel that the extrapolations are accurate and have properly reflected the effects of
changes and events occurring subsequent to the most recent valuation that had a
material effect on the extrapolation.
General Representations
25. The nature of all material uncertainties have been appropriately measured and disclosed
in the financial statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that
the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material
to the financial statements.
26. There were no direct contingencies or provisions (including those associated with
guarantees or indemnification provisions), unusual contractual obligations nor any
substantial commitments, whether oral or written, other than in the ordinary course of
business, which would materially affect the financial statements or financial position of
SCRD, except as disclosed in the financial statements.
27. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have
been discussed with legal counsel. Since there are no outstanding or possible claims, no
disclosure is required in the financial statements.
28. We confirm that there are no derivatives or off-balance sheet financial instruments held
at year end that have not been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements.
29. We have disclosed to you all significant customers and/or suppliers of the organization
who individually represent a significant volume of business with the organization. We are
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of the opinion that the volume of business (sales, services, purchases, borrowing and
lending) done by SCRD with any one party is not of sufficient magnitude that
discontinuance would have a material negative effect on the ongoing operations of the
organization.
30. There have been no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.
31. We confirm that operating segments are appropriately identified and disclosed in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
32. No significant matters, other than those disclosed in the financial statements, have arisen
that would require a restatement of the comparative financial statements.
33. We have made the following additional significant representations to you during the
course of your audit which we understand that you have relied upon:


All tangible capital assets and inventory have been recorded and additions for the
year are complete and accurate. Amortization based on the expected useful life
of the tangible capital asset and residual value is our best estimate for the
consumption of a portion of the tangible capital asset for the year. Where the
value of any tangible capital asset has been impaired, an appropriate provision
has been made in the financial statements or has otherwise been disclosed to
you.

Yours truly,

___________________________________
Signature

_______________________________
Position

___________________________________
Signature

_______________________________
Position
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APPENDIX D – Management Letter
Direct Line: 604-443-4716
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca
April 15, 2015
Mr. John France, Chief Administrative Officer
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC
V0N 3A1
Dear Mr. France:
As your external auditors, we are engaged to provide an audit opinion on your year end financial
statements. An external audit requires testing of transactions and balances and review of those
internal control systems upon which we may place reliance. A positive opinion on the financial
statements does not necessarily mean that your internal control systems are all operating
effectively. This is because we review only those internal control systems where we feel that
failure in those systems could result in a material error on the financial statements. With those
systems that we do review, our focus is on the assertions necessary to meet our financial
statement audit objectives.
Our review of systems, transactions and balances as well as discussions with staff at various levels
gives us a unique insight into your operations. While conducting this work we make note of items
that come to our attention where we feel that improvement could be made or alternatives could
be considered. We are fortunate in that we work with a great number of clients and observe a
wide variety of processes. We see firsthand any procedures that are emerging as best practices.
As matters come to our attention, we make note of these for subsequent follow-up. For minor
matters we discuss directly with the staff involved. More important matters are brought forward
in this letter (known as a “management letter”).
It is worth noting that we have management letter comments for virtually all audits of all clients.
The existence of points does not mean that there are significant problems with your systems or
staff. They are just recommendations to make good systems better.
Status of Prior Year Recommendations
1. Contaminated Sites (SCRD)
We had previously mentioned to you the new public sector accounting standard that comes
into force in 2015 known as “Liabilities for Contaminated Sites”. This standard requires that
a government entity record a liability in regard to any properties that are not in use where
there is environmental contamination above the legal standard. Importantly, the standard
requires the government to methodologically review its properties to determine those
properties at risk, and potentially to conduct environmental testing on high-risk properties.
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The approach that this standard takes makes it quite onerous because of the requirement to
actively go beyond just what you are already aware of. It is expected that many local
governments will have no resulting ending liability under this standard, yet they will still have
to expend significant effort to be able to show this. Because of the requirement to determine
inventory of properties, review the history of those properties, and potentially engage
external experts in the process; this is not something that can be left to the last minute.
Your staff are aware of these new standards and have developed preliminary plans for
completing its requirements. We encourage them to get a start on this early in the fiscal
year.
We are pleased to report that SCRD has continued with their preliminary testing and
investigation for the implementation of PS3260 “Liability for Contaminated Sites” and that
they will be in a position to record and disclose any liabilities should the need arise for fiscal
2015 adoption.
Current Year Observations
1. Review of Investments (SCRD)
During the audit, we noted that there is no formal review and sign off of the investment
account reconciliation, prepared by Accounting Technician III, each month. While there is a
quarterly review performed by the Board, with the growing number of investments held in
various institutions, there is a risk that errors could go undetected for a number of months
which could impact investment decisions.
Recommendation
We recommend that a formal monthly review process be adopted, and that evidence of the
monthly review be maintained.
Management Comments
This has been implemented for 2015.

With regards to the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District there were no prior year
recommendations or current year observations to report on.
This communication is prepared solely for the information of management and those charged
with governance and is not intended for any other purposes. We accept no responsibility to a
third party who uses this communication.
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We would like to express our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance which we received
from Tina Perreault, Jackie Day, Brad Wing and the rest of the Finance Department during the
course of the audit.
We shall be pleased to discuss with you further any matters mentioned in this letter at your
convenience.
Yours truly,

Bill Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/
cc Board of Directors
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
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Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting
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The financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Sunshine Coast Regional
Hospital District. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

es

The financial statements include, where appropriate, estimates based on the best judgment of
management. The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District maintains systems of internal accounting
and administrative controls of high quality, consistent with reasonable cost.
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Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant,
reliable and accurate, and that Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District's assets are appropriately
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

pu

The Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District reviews and approves the annual
financial statements.
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_____________________________ Treasurer
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Signed by:
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_____________________________ Chair

D

R

AF

T

-f

or

Date: April 23, 2015
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Tel: 604 688 5421
Fax: 604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
600 Cathedral Place
925 West Georgia Street
Vancouver BC V6C 3L2 Canada

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chairperson and Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District

on
ly

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District,
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the Statements of
Operations, Changes in Net Financial Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

es

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

rp

os

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Opinion

AF

T

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

D

R

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of
the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations,
change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
April 23, 2015
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2014
2013

2014
Financial Assets
Cash and equivalents

$

Portfolio investments (Note 4)

45,716

3,495,672

20,640

561,872

5,122,135

5,414,424

on
ly
164,334

438,888

11,104,689

11,801,370

es

Long-term debt (Note 5)

1,356,880

5,055,779

Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$

11,269,023

12,240,258

$ (6,146,888) $ (6,825,834)
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Net Financial Debt and Accumulated Deficit (Note 6)

________________________

Frank Mauro

Treasurer

D

R

Tina Perreault

_________________________

Chair

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Change In Net Debt
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
Fiscal Plan
2014
(Note 7)
Annual surplus (deficit)

2014

$ (2,344,032) $

Net debt, beginning

(6,825,834)

678,946
(6,825,834)

2013

$ (2,153,097)
(4,672,737)

$ (9,169,866) $ (6,146,888) $ (6,825,834)
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Net debt, ending

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
Fiscal Plan
2014
(Note 7)
Revenue
Grants in lieu of taxes

$

$

1,066

$

1,328

1,823,717

1,823,718

1,827,679

Investment income

30,000

58,991

80,801

Other revenue

-

157,577

127,268

2,041,352

es

1,855,017

on
ly

Tax requisitions

1,300

Actual
2013

Actual
2014

109,313

109,313

113,275

744,794

744,588

744,794

465,669

206,199

534,958

os

Expenses
Administration (Note 3)

rp

Debt charges - interest

pu

Minor capital
Bank charges and interest

ss
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Funded grants to hospital

Accumulated Deficit, beginning of year

427

327

2,879,273

-

301,879

2,796,819

4,199,049

1,362,406

4,190,173

(2,344,032)

(6,825,834)

678,946

(6,825,834)

(2,153,097)

(4,672,737)

$ (9,169,866) $ (6,146,888) $ (6,825,834)
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Accumulated Deficit, end of year
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Annual Surplus (Deficit)

2,037,076

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Statement Of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
2014

2013

Operating Transactions:

678,946 $ (2,153,097)

$

Annual Surplus (Deficit)
Items not involving cash included in annual surplus (deficit):
Non-cash item- actuarial investment earnings

Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable
(Decrease) Increase in accrued payables

(154,133)

(127,268)

541,232

(495,939)

on
ly

(274,555)

Total Operating Transactions

791,490

es

Investing Transactions:
Decrease (Increase) in portfolio investments

os

(1,560,107)

(542,547)

rp

Financing Transactions:
Debt sinking fund contributions

(1,311,164)

pu

Total Increase (Decrease) in cash

on

Cash and equivalents, beginning of year

$

(5,754,194)

7,567,944

(542,547)
1,271,203

85,677

45,716 $ 1,356,880
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Cash and equivalents, end of year

1,356,880

(2,977,890)

The accompanying "Notes to the Financial Statements" form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

1.

Operations:

The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District is responsible for financing and funding of capital activities
relating to St. Mary's Hospital.
Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

on
ly

2.

Revenue recognition:

es

Sources of revenue are recorded on an accrual basis and recognized in the period in which they
are earned.

(b)

pu

rp

os

Taxes are recorded at estimated amounts when they meet the definition of an asset, have been
authorized and the taxable event occurs. Annual tax requisitions are recorded as taxes for Hospital
District services in the year they are requisitioned.
Expense recognition:

Cash and equivalents:

ss
i

(c)

on

Operating expenses are recognized on an accrual basis in the period in which they are incurred.

Portfolio investments:

or

(d)

di

sc
u

Cash consists of cash on hand, cash in transit, and cash on deposit. Cash equivalents are short-term
investments made to obtain a return on a temporary basis and are carried at cost.

-f

Investments consist of marketable securities which are carried at cost but written down when there has
been a permanent decline in value.

T

Government transfers:

AF

(e)

3.

D

R

Grants and transfers are recorded as expenses when the transfer is authorized and eligibility criteria
have been met by the recipient.

Related Party Transactions:

The Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District is related to the Sunshine Coast Regional District since
the same individuals are members of the Board of Directors of both organizations. As legislated by the
Hospital District Act, the officers and employees of the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District are the
corresponding officers and employees of the Sunshine Coast Regional District. Each of the Hospital
District and Regional District are separate legal entities as defined by separate Letters Patent and
authorized by separate legislation. In 2014, the Hospital District paid, at cost, to the Sunshine Coast
Regional District an amount of $109,313 (2013 - $113,275) for general accounting and administration
services provided to the Hospital District. These transactions are recorded at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.
6
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Portfolio Investments:

2014
Municipal Finance Authority 1

3,074,461

Sunshine Coast Credit

Union 3

330,000

Financial 4

1,216,392

es

BlueShore

on
ly

Raymond James

434,926 $

$

2

5,055,779 $

241,631
2,708,813
545,228
3,495,672

os

$

2013

1

Municipal Finance Authority investments are held in a CIBC Mellon Money Market Fund with an average yield of 1.11%. These include
tax requistion funds, debt reserve payouts, and sinking fund surplus payments to be used for future capital projects.
2

pu

rp

Raymond James investments are held in a portfolio of various fixed income investments with interest rates ranging from 1.40% to 1.82%
for the purpose of the St. Mary's expansion project and regular Hospital District operations.
3

Sunshine Coast Credit Union investment is held in a term deposit with an interest rate of 1.90% for the purpose of regular Hospital
District operations.
4

ss
i

on

BlueShore Financial investments are held in term deposits with interest rates ranging from 1.65% to 1.70% for the purpose of the St.
Mary's expansion project and regular Hospital District operations.

R

AF

T

-f

or

di

sc
u

The fair market value of the portfolio investments approximates the carrying value (including accrued
interest of $65,204) of the various investments, based on the quoted year-end market bid prices.

D

4.

7
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Long Term Debt:

All long term debt is issued through the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia. The Authority is
the borrowing agent for municipalities and regional districts in the province of British Columbia. All
debenture debt issued by Municipal Finance Authority is sinking fund debt.

Issue

Interest Rate

on
ly

Sinking fund debentures issued through the Municipal Finance Authority:

2013

2014

Issued in 1999, maturing in 2019

3.15 % $

95

Issued in 2005, maturing in 2015

4.17 %

102

Issued in 2007, maturing in 2027

4.82 %

81,510 $

os

71

es

(a)

95,906
87,310

10,980,311

11,618,154

rp

42,868

pu

$ 11,104,689 $ 11,801,370

ss
i

on

Future principal repayments on existing long-term debt:
2015

2016

sc
u

2017
2018

di

2019

703,300
731,515
760,861
791,386

-f

$ 11,104,689

T

Actuarial earnings:

AF

Long term debt is recorded net of any sinking fund balances. Actuarial sinking fund earnings in 2014 was
$154,133 (2013 - $127,268)

R

(b)

721,997

7,395,630

or

Thereafter

$

D

5.

8
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Accumulated Deficit:

Fund Balances:
Current fund

Reserve fund
2

Amount representing cumulative funded grants

os

to hospital less related debt repaid

3

305,352

631,160

466,595

2,045,968

2,003,116

$

(9,206,095)

(9,600,897)

(6,146,888) $

(6,825,834)

pu

rp

Accumulated Deficit, end of year

2013

382,079 $

es

Capital fund

$

1

on
ly

2014

1

on

This amount of tax requisition funds, debt reserve payouts and sinking fund surplus payments received from the Municipal
Finance Authority were recorded in a reserve fund to be used for future capital projects. During 2014, the Hospital District
contributed $189,863 from the Current Fund and other earnings of $6,876 from MFA investment earnings and MFA cash
distribution. Reserve funds of $32,175 were used for funding additional minor capital projects at St. Mary's Hospital.
2

sc
u

These amounts will be recovered from future requisitions for debt repayment.

R

AF

T

-f

or

di

3

ss
i

In 2014, revenue earned from capital investments held for the purpose of the St. Mary's Hospital Expansion project was
$42,852 (2013- $61,762).

D

6.
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Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
Notes To The Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

7.

Fiscal Plan:

The 2014 Fiscal Plan was approved by the Board through the adoption of By-Law No. 83 on March 6,
2014. The Fiscal Plan includes items not shown on the statement of operations as identified below:
2014

Fiscal Plan surplus for the year:
Fiscal Plan funding sources that are not revenues for accounting
purposes:

os

Transfer from Section 20 reserves-roof projects

Transfer from Section 20 reserves-carry over (minor capital equipment)

(67,290)

(154,879)
(2,879,273)

pu

rp

Funded grants to hospital

-

es

$

on
ly

Fiscal Plan

Fiscal Plan expenditures that are not expenses for accounting
purposes:

sc
u

Transfer to appropriated capital surplus

25,000
$

(2,344,032)

di

Fiscal Plan Deficit

189,863

ss
i

Transfer to reserves

or

Commitments:

AF

T

-f

Vancouver Coastal Health is expanding and renovating the facilities at St. Mary’s Hospital. The original
project cost was $39,750,000. The project cost has been revised to $44,150,000 with a 2016 estimated
completion date of which the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District share of the cost remains at
$15,900,000. On July 26, 2007, Capital Expenditure and Borrowing Bylaw No. 76 was enacted to borrow
up to $16,183,200 including issuing expense and debt reserves, with a 20 year term.

R

In 2014, $301,879 was expensed for the hospital expansion project and in 2013, $2,796,819.

D

8.

542,547

on

Principal debt payments
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ANNEX D
SCRHD STAFF REPORT
DATE:

April 12, 2015

TO:

Regional Hospital District Board – April 23, 2015

FROM:

Tina Perreault- Treasurer

RE:

VCH Closed Loop Medication System RHD Funding Request

Recommendation(s)
THAT the Treasurer’s report regarding the “VCH Closed Loop Medication System RHD
Funding Request” be received;
AND THAT the SCRHD fund the Closed Loop Medication System per the 40% cost share
request in the amount of $547,894 and funded from reserves;
AND THAT the 2015 SCRHD Budget be amended to include the project;
AND FURTHER THAT the SCRHD fund the project with 50% prior to August 1st and the
remaining after August 10th, 2015.

BACKGROUND
The following resolution was made at the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Board
(SCRHD) on March 26, 2015, excerpts as follows:
Annual Budget

It was moved and seconded

21/15

THAT the Treasurer’s report titled “2015 Sunshine Coast Regional
Hospital District (SCRHD) Annual Budget and Vancouver Coastal
Health (VCH) Cost Share Request” be received;
AND THAT the 2015 SCRHD Budget be approved as presented;
AND THAT the SCRHD fund the proposed Closed Loop Medication
System 40% cost share in the amount of $547,894 from reserves;
AND THAT staff contact VCH to determine their cash flow
requirements for this project prior to the April 23, 2015 SCRHD
Board meeting;
AND FURTHER THAT the SCRHD request that any further
payments to VCH be split with 50% funded prior to August 1 and
the remaining after August 10, 2015.
CARRIED
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COMMUNICATIONS
Cost Share

It was moved and seconded

23/15

THAT the correspondence from Mike Nader, Chief Operating
Officer, Coastal Community of Care, Vancouver Coastal Health
(VCH) regarding confirmation of 60% VCH funding of total
$1,369,734 for clinical equipment required to implement the Closed
Loop Medication Management, Bedside Closed Loop Medication,
and Computerized Physician Order Entry (SPOE) at St. Mary’s
Hospital be received.

Cost Share

It was moved and seconded

24/15

THAT the correspondence from Ron Nelson, Chair, St. Mary’s
Hospital Foundation regarding confirmation of $500,000
funding toward the Closed Loop Medication System be
received.

DISCUSSION
Staff received confirmation from VCH that the Closed Loop Medication System could be paid with
50% funded prior to August 1 and the remaining after August 10, 2015. Therefore, it is
recommended the project be approved and included in the 2015 SCRHD Financial Plan. The
previous reports on the item are attached for reference.
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Attachment 1
SCRHD STAFF REPORT
DATE:

March 16, 2015

TO:

Regional Hospital District Board – March 26, 2015

FROM:

Tina Perreault- Treasurer

RE:

2015 SCRHD Annual Budget & VCH Cost Share Request

Recommendation(s)
THAT the Treasurer’s report regarding the “2015 SCRHD Annual Budget & VCH Cost
Share Request” be received;
AND THAT the 2015 SCRHD Budget be approved as presented in preparation for
adoption;
AND THAT once the RHD receives formal confirmation from VCH that the 60% funding
has been secured for the Closed Loop Medication System, that the correspondence be
forwarded to the next available RHD meeting for formal approval and inclusion to the
2015 SCRHD Budget;
AND THAT the SCRHD fund the proposed Closed Loop Medication System 40% cost
share in the amount of $547,894 from reserves;
AND FURTHER THAT the SCRHD request that any future payments to VCH be split with
50% funded prior to August 1st and the remaining after August 10th, 2015.

BACKGROUND
The following resolutions were made by the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District Board
(SCRHD) at the November 27, 2014 and February 26, 2015, excerpts as follows:
Provisional Budget

It was moved and seconded

49/14

THAT the Treasurer’s report titled “2015 RHD Provisional Budget”
be received;
AND THAT an increase to $275,000 for contribution to reserves
be included in the 2015 Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
(SCRHD) Provisional Budget.

Cost Share

It was moved and seconded

13/15

THAT the Vancouver Coastal Health cost share request of
$547,894 for the purchase of Closed Loop Medication
Management System (CLMM) as part of the Clinical Systems
Transformation Project (CST) for St. Mary’s Hospital be supported
in principle

123

Staff report to Regional Hospital District Board

Page 2

AND THAT staff report with the funding options for this Cost Share
Request to the Regional Hospital District Board Meeting in March
2015.
Reserves and Capital

It was moved and seconded

16/15

THAT the Treasurer’s report titled “Reserve and Capital Funds
Update” be received.

DISCUSSION
2015 SCRHD Budget
Attached is a copy of the Draft 2015 SCRHD Budget in preparation for adoption as well as the
staff report that went to the November 27, 2014 RHD meeting detailing the changes from 2014.
The changes in assessment have reduced the net change in the residential tax rate down to
2.35% from the projected 4.65% estimated in the Provisional Budget.
VCH Cost Share Request
At the February 26, 2015 RHD meeting, Vancouver Coastal Health (VCH) presented a cost
share request for a Closed Loop Medication Management System. The Board approved the
cost share in principle, pending VCH’s confirmation that the remaining funding is secured. It
was requested that this not be included in the 2015 Budget for adoption.
Below is an updated table outlining available funds, and due to cash flow, complete funding
would not be available until after August 10th when the 2015 tax requisition has been received.
Therefore, it is recommended that once the RHD receives formal confirmation from VCH that
the 60% funding has been secured, that this be forwarded to the next available RHD meeting for
amendment and inclusion to the 2015 Budget. The RHD will need to request that payment be
split with 50% funded prior to August 1st and the remaining after August 10th, 2015. A copy of
this report shall be attached for reference to a future RHD meeting regarding the funding
request confirmation.

Investments:
Balance at February 28, 2015 (FMV)
Contributions:
2014 Budget Contribution to Reserves
Less Funding Commitments:
Remaining St. Mary’s Redevelopment Project
2 Anesthetic Machines (approved September 2014)
Closed Loop Medication Management System
Total funding remaining at year end
Plus:2015 Budget Contribution to Reserves
Total (available in 2016)
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Reserves
(Additional
Minor Capital)

St. Mary’s
Hospital
Expansion
Project

$472,494

$3,943,815

$189,863
($3,098,062)
($104,000)
(547,894)
$10,463
$275,000
$285,463

$845,753

*attachment to 2015 SCRHD Annual Budget and Cost Share Request report
SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
2015 Budget
2014 - 2015
Budget
2015
REVENUE
Tax Requisition
Grants in Lieu of Taxes
Interest Revenues - Operating Funds
Transfer from Sec 20 Reserves-Carry Over
Surplus - Operating
Surplus - Operating-Carry Over
Interest Revenue - On debenture investments
TOTAL REVENUE

$

$

EXPENDITURES
Debt Payments
- Principal
- Interest
- Short Term Interest

$

Budget 2014

1,909,638 $
1,300
5,000
104,000
245,560
10,000
2,275,498 $

1,823,717
1,300
5,000
67,290
154,879
25,000
2,077,186 $

542,548 $
744,794
-

542,548
744,794
-

Admin expenses - S 17(2)

110,097

109,313

Other Expenditures - Grant St Mary's Hospital Auxillary
Minor Capital Expenditures- Current Year
Minor Capital Expenditures- Carry-Over Prior Year
Additional Minor Capital Expenditures-Carry Over
Additional Minor Capital Expenditures
Transfer to Reserves
Transfer to Approp. Capital Surplus

3,500
240,000
245,560
104,000
275,000
10,000

3,500
240,000
154,879
67,290
189,863
25,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$

2,275,498 $

Surplus (deficit)

$

(0) $

Residential Tax Rate (per $100,000 of assessed value)

$

20.30

$

2,077,186 $

$ Change

% Change

85,921
36,710
90,681
(15,000)
198,312

784
90,681
36,710
85,137
(15,000)
198,312

4.71%

54.55%
58.55%
-60.00%
9.55%

0.00%
0.00%

0.72%
0.00%
0.00%

44.84%
-60.00%

9.55%

(0)
19.84 $

0.47

2.35%

Major Capital Projects
St Mary's Hospital Expansion Project - $44.150 million total budget

Project Cost
VCH share (60%)
Ministry of Health & St. Mary's Foundation
SCRHD share (40%)
Total Project cost

Prior Year
Spent
23,850,000
4,400,000
12,801,938
41,051,938
93%

2015

2016

3,098,062
3,098,062
7%

2017

2018

0%

2019

-

-

note: subject to revised construction schedule

SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
Debt Payments
2015
Existing Debt - Prior to Hospital Expansion Project
Principal
Interest
Annual Payment

2016

2017

2018

2019

40,103
23,633
63,736

40,103
23,633
63,736

7,909
7,515
15,424

7,909
7,515
15,424

7,909
7,515
15,424

Hospital Expansion - 14.7mil borrowed in 07
Principal
Interest
Total Annual Payment

502,445
721,160
1,223,605

502,445
721,160
1,223,605

502,445
721,160
1,223,605

502,445
721,160
1,223,605

502,445
721,160
1,223,605

Total Annual Debt Payment Costs

1,287,341

1,287,341

1,239,029

1,239,029

1,239,029
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Total
23,850,000
4,400,000
15,900,000
44,150,000
100.00%

ANNEX E
Tel: 604 638 5421
Fax: 604 6S8 5132
vancouverbdoca
www.bdo.ca

I

300 Canada LLP
600 Cahedra Pace
925 West Geora Street
Vrccuver SC V5C 3L2 Canada

Direct Line: 604-443-4716
E-mail: bcox@bdo.ca
December 11, 2014
Ms. Tina Perreault
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt BC VON 3A1
Dear Ms. Perreault:
Thank you for requesting our firm to audit the financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional
District, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the
Statements of Operations, Changes in Net Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. Our audit will be
conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial statements.
Our Role as Auditors
Conduct of the Audit
At the conclusion of our audit, we will submit a report directed to the Board of Directors
containing our opinion on the financial statements. If it appears for any reason that we will not
be in a position to render an unqualified opinion on the financial statements, we wiLl discuss this
with you.
We wiLl conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian generalLy accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we compLy with ethical requirements and plan to perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit aLso includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overalL financial statement presentation.
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal
control, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected,
even though the audit is properly pLanned and performed in accordance with Canadian generalLy
accepted auditing standards.
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal controL relevant to the entitys preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entitys internal control. However, we wilt communicate to you in writing
concerning any significant deficiencies in internal control relevant to the audit of the financiaL
statements that we have identified during the audit.
During the course of our audit, if we identify the following matters, we wilt communicate them
to the appropriate level of management and the Board of Directors:
•

misstatements, other than trivial errors;

• fraud;
•
•

misstatements that may cause future financial statements to be materially misstated;
illegal or possibly illegal acts, other than ones considered inconsequential;

BOo Canada LLP, a Canadian im1td abty partrershp, s a rnembr f OO Intrnation& Lirite1, a
< company rnted by
arantee, and forms part of the hternetonal BOO network of independent rnamber firms.
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• significant weaknesses in internal control; and
• certain reLated party transactions.
We will also make notes of any other matters that we beLieve shouLd be brought to your
attention and will communicate them to you. These might incLude comments on internal control
procedures, management information systems, accounting poLicies and other cLient service
matters. Audits do not usually identify alL matters that may be of interest to management in
discharging its responsibilities. The type and significance of the matter to be communicated wiLL
determine the LeveL of management to which the communication is directed.
Throughout the audit we wilL aLso be communicating with the Board of Directors on matters that
bear on independence, matters that pertain to pLanning and executing our audit and any other
matters in addition to those identified in the preceding paragraphs that we feeL should be
brought to their attention as required by Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Role of Management and Council
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and those charged with governance
acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:
(a) For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards;
(b) For such internaL controls as management considers necessary to enable the preparation of
the financiaL statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; and
(c) To provide us with:
•

access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other
matters;

•

additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the
audit; and

•

unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, where appropriate, those
charged with governance written confirmation concerning representations made to us in
connection with the audit.
Fraud and Error

Management is also responsible for the following with respect to fraud and error:
•

the design and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud and error;

•

an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a
result of fraud;

•

providing us with information relating to fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity
involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, or others,
where the fraud couLd have a material effect on the financial statements;

2
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•

providing us with information relating to any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting
the entitys financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others; and

•

communicating their belief that the effects of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements aggregated during the audit are immateriaL, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that policies are in place for effective
corporate governance, and to ensure that all unusual and material transactions during the year
are properly approved.
We look forward to full cooperation from your staff during our audit.
Reporting

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Unless unanticipated difficulties are encountered, our report will be substantiaLly in the form
outLined in Appendix 1. Should there be unforeseen circumstances, the report may differ from
that attached.
Tax Services

If other tax services, such as tax planning, GST/PST advice, etc. are required, we wilL confirm
them with you as they arise.
To the extent that such additional services are not covered by a separate engagement letter, the
terms of this engagement letter shall apply to those additional services which you request.
Our audit is conducted primarily to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements.
Accordingly, the audit process may not detect situations where the municipality is incorrectly
collecting GST/PST or incorrectly claiming input tax credits, unless material. As you are aware,
failure to properly account for the GST/PST could result in you or your municipality becoming
liable for tax, interest or penalties. These situations may also arise for provincial sales tax,
custom duties, and excise taxes.
Standard Terms and Conditions

A copy of our Standard Terms and Conditions is enclosed in Appendix 2. You should ensure that
you read and understand these as they contain important terms including those in connection
with the scope of the Engagement, your responsibilities, fees, use of our advice and our liability.
The Standard Terms and Conditions form part of the Engagement Letter. Should any of the
terms included in the Standard Terms and Conditions conflict with any of the other terms in this
letter, the latter will prevail.
You expressly agree and understand that the terms in the Engagement Letter apply to all
services provided by us pursuant to the Engagement, whether such services were performed or
provided before or after the signing of the Engagement Letter. The Engagement Letter will
remain in place and fully effective until varied or replaced by written agreement between us.
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If you have any questions about the terms of this engagement, please do not hesitate to contact
us. Please sign and return the attached copy of this Letter to indicate your acknowLedgement of,
and agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financiaL statements including our
respective responsibilities.
It is a pleasure for us to be of service and we Look forward to many years of association with you.
Yours truLy,

Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn

Agreement of aLL the above terms, after fuLL review, consideration and discussion of them, is
hereby acknowledged by:

Sunshine Coast Regional District

Signature

Position

Date

Signature

Position

Date

4
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Appendix I
Form of Report
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Sunshine Coast Regional District
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sunshine Coast Regional District,
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014, and the
Statements of Operations, Changes in Net Debt and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting poLicies and other expLanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsibLe for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian pubLic sector accounting standards, and for such
internaL control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from materiaL misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we compLy with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internaL control reLevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financiaL statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal controL. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financiaL statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financiaL
position of Sunshine Coast RegionaL District as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its
operations, changes in net debt, and cash fLows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
Date
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Appendix 2
Standard Terms and Conditions
Introduction

Practice Inspections

Unless otherwise specificalLy agreed in the Engagement
Letter, the Engagement Letter replaces any previous
agreements between us in relation to or in contemplation
of the Engagement and shall apply to any future
engagements we carry out on your behalf unless varied or
replaced. The Engagement Letter (which includes these
Standard Terms and Conditions) constitutes the entire
agreement between us. In entering into this Engagement
Letter you acknowledge that you have not relied on, and
shall have no right or remedy in respect of, any statement,
representation, assurance or warranty (whether made
negligently or innocentLy) other than as expressly set out in
the Engagement Letter.

As required by legal, regulatory or professional authorities
(both in Canada and abroad) or by firm policy, our client
files must periodically be reviewed by practice inspectors
to ensure that we are adhering to professional and firm
standards. We will proceed on the basis that we have your
consent to provide our files relating to your engagement to
these practice inspectors for the sole purpose of their
inspection.

Independence

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to
be independent, in both fact and appearance, with respect
to Sunshine Coast Regional District in the performance of
our services. We will communicate in writing to the Board
of Directors any relationships between BDO Canada LLP
(including its related entities) and Sunshine Coast Regional
District (including its related entities) that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear
Further, we will confirm our
on our independence.
independence in writing.
Conflict of Interests

We provide a wide range of services for a large number of
clients and may be in a position where we are providing
services to clients in the same industry as you who may
represent competing commercial interests to you or whose
interests may otherwise conflict with your own. We cannot
be certain that we wilt identify all such situations that exist
or may develop, and it is difficult for us to anticipate all
situations that you might perceive to conflict.
We
therefore request that you notify us promptly of any
potential conflict affecting the engagement contract of
which you are, or become, aware.
Where the above circumstances are identified by us or you
and we believe that your interests can be properly
safeguarded by appropriate procedures, we will discuss and
agree with you the arrangements that already may exist or
that we will put in place to preserve confidentiality and to
ensure that the advice and opinions which you receive from
us are wholly independent of the advice and opinions that
we provide to other clients.
Confidentiality

We will maintain the strictest confidence with respect to
any client’s or former client’s information. Accordingly,
your confidential information will not, without your
consent, be disclosed to any individuals in our firm beyond
those who are in the local office through which you
engaged our services and those individuals from other
offices who are involved in performing services for you.
Nor will it be disclosed without your consent to anyone
outside the firm, with the exception that we proceed on
the basis that we have your consent to disclose information
required by judicial, regulatory or professional authority.

Other Matters
Personal Information

It is acknowledged that we will have access to all personal
information in your custody that we require to complete
our engagement.
Our services are provided on the
understanding that:
•

you have obtained any required consents for
collection, use and disclosure to us of personal
information required under applicable privacy
legislation; and

•

we will hold all personal information
compliance with our Privacy Statement.

in

Electronic Communications

During the course of our audit, we may be required to
communicate to you electronically by email or through the
Internet. In some instances, electronic copies of your
financial statements may be sent to you electronically or
may be required by a regulatory body. As you are aware,
there is security risk attached to these electronic
communications (including human error).
Please
communicate with us regarding any issues or concerns you
may have in this regard.
Dispute Resolution Procedures

If any dispute, controversy or claim arises in connection
with the performance or breach of this agreement, either
party may, upon written notice to the other party, request
facilitated negotiations. Such negotiations shall be assisted
by a neutral facilitator acceptable to both parties and shall
require the best efforts of the parties to discuss with each
other in good faith their respective positions and,
respecting their different interests, to finally resolve such
dispute.
Limitation of Liability

In any dispute, action, claim, demand for losses or damages
arising out of the services performed by BDO Canada LLP
pursuant to this engagement, BDO Canada LLP shall only be
liable for its proportionate share of the total liability based
on degree of fault as determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction or by an independent arbitrator as a result of
the dispute resolution procedures discussed previously,
notwithstanding the provisions of any statute or rule of
common law which create, or purport to create, joint and
several liability.
Our liability shall be restricted to damages of a direct and
compensatory nature and shall not include indirect,
consequential, aggravated or punitive damages, or damages
for loss of profits or expected tax savings.
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Sole Recourse and Other BDO Member Firms
This engagement is between you and BDO Canada LLP only.
The provisions of this clause shalL only apply where, and to
the extent, permitted by applicable laws.

by your municipality, failing which, the matter
may be referred to dispute resolution in
accordance with the terms of this letter.
Propriety of Working Papers

If one of our affiLiates carries out any work for you in
relation to the services to which this engagement applies,
our affiliates will do so as a subcontractor of BDO Canada
LLP. BOO Canada LLP shalL remain the contracting party
and shall be the sole entity that is responsible to you,
including for the work carried out by any of our affiliates.

The working papers prepared in conjunction with our audit
are the property of our firm, constitute confidential
information and will be retained by us in accordance with
our firms policies and procedures.

ALso, where appropriate, we may use other BDO Member
Firms to assist us with the services to which this
engagement applies. Notwithstanding the fact that the
services may be carried out by other BDO Member Firms
assisting us as supplemental providers of services and as
subcontractors of BOO Canada LLP (“B DO subcontractors”),
you agree that BDO Canada LLP shall have sole liability for
both its acts and/or omissions and also all acts and/or
omissions of any BOO subcontractors and you agree that
you shalL bring no claims or proceedings of any nature
whatsoever (whether in contract, tort, breach of statutory
duty or otherwise) against any BDO subcontractors or BOO
International entities (including, without limitation, BDO
International Limited and Brussels Worldwide Services
BVBA) or other BDO Member Firms in any way arising from,
in respect of or in connection with the services or this
engagement.

The examination of the financial statements and the
issuance of our audit opinion are solely for the use of
Sunshine Coast Regional District and those to whom our
report is specifically addressed by us.

These exclusions shall not apply to any liability, claim or
proceeding founded on an allegation of fraud or wilful
misconduct or other liability that cannot be excLuded under
applicable Laws.
It is agreed that, unLess otherwise specified, the Limitation
of Liability and indemnification provisions in this
engagement shall apply equally to BDO Canada LLP, our
affiliates and any BOO sub contractors we may involve in
the Services.
You agree that any of our affiliates and any BOO
subcontractors whom we may involve in the services or BOO
International entities or other BOO Member Firms shall each
have the right to rely on and enforce the paragraphs above
as if they were parties to this engagement.
Indemnity
Your municipality hereby agrees to indemnify, defend (by
counsel retained and instructed by us) and hold harmless
BDO Canada LLP and its partners, agents or employees,
from and against any and all losses, costs (including
solicitors’ fees), damages, expenses, claims, demands or
liabilities arising out of or in consequence of:
•

•

the breach by your municipality, or its directors,
officers, agents or employees, of any of the
covenants made by your municipality herein,
including, without restricting the generality of
the foregoing, the misuse of, or the unauthorized
dissemination of, our audit report or the financial
statements in reference to which the audit report
is issued, or any other work product made
available to you by our firm; and
the services performed by BOO Canada LLP
pursuant to this engagement, unless, and to the
extent that, such losses, costs, damages and
expenses are found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to have been due to the negligence
of BDO Canada LLP. In the event that the matter
is settled out of court, we will mutually agree on
the extent of the indemnification to be provided

Use and Distribution of Our Report

BOO Canada LLP makes no representations of any kind to
any third party in respect of these financial statements and
we accept no responsibility for their use by any third party.
If reproduction or publication of our report is planned in an
annual report or other document, including electronic
filings or posting of the report on a web site, a copy of the
entire document should be submitted to us in sufficient
time for our review before the publication or posting
process begins.
Should the municipality wish to include the financial
statements referred to above and our report thereon in a
document proposed to be used in connection with a public
or private offering of securities at some future date, please
contact us immediately. We will consider our consent to
the inclusion of our report in such a document at that time.
Fees
Our professional fees will be based on our regular billing
rates which depend on the means by which and by whom
our services are provided. We also will bill you for our outof-pocket expenses, our internal charges for certain
support activities, and applicable Goods and Services Tax
and Provincial Sales Tax.
Our internal charges are
calculated at 5.0% of our professional fees and represent an
allocation of estimated costs associated with general office
services such as computer usage, telephone charges,
facsimile transmissions, postage and photocopying. Fees
for additional services will be established separately. Our
fees are due when rendered.
Interest will be charged on all overdue accounts at the rate
of 1% per month (12% per annum).
International BDO Network
The firm is a member of the BOO international network.
This network comprises independent firms (which use
“BOO” as part of their business name) in many countries.
These firms are associated BOO entities, but are separate
Legal entities.
No associated BOO entity is our agent or partner, and no
associated BDO entity has authority to enter into any Legal
obligations on our behalf. If we introduce you to an
associated BOO entity we do not accept any Liability for
work that they carry out on your behalf and you must make
your own contractual arrangements with them directly.
We are not the agent or partner of any associated BOO
entity and we do not have authority to enter into any legal
obligations on their behalf.
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Force Majeure

We wilt not be liable for any delays or failures in
performance or breach of contract due to events or
circumstances beyond our reasonable control, including
acts of God, war, acts by governments and regulators, acts
of terrorism, accident, fire, flood or storm or civil
disturbance.
Severability

In the event that any part of these Terms of Business and
the Engagement Letter of which they form part is held to
be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder will continue in
full force and effect.
Governing Laws and Termination

The above terms of our engagement shall remain operative
until amended, terminated or superseded in writing. They
sha[l be interpreted according to the laws of the Province
of British Columbia and the laws of Canada applicable
therein, and any disputes arising from this engagement
shall be referred to the courts of British Columbia, which
shall have exclusive jurisdiction.
It is possible that we may determine that we cannot render
a report or complete the engagement.
If, in our
professional judgment, the circumstances require, we will
notify you of our resignation from this engagement which
shall conform to all applicable laws.
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Tei: 6046385421
Fax: 604 688 5132
vancouver@bdo.ca
www.bdo.ca

3DOCanadaLL?
600 Cathedrai Piace
925 West Georgia Street
Varcouver SC V6C 3L2 Carada

December11, 2014
Members of the Boards
Sunshine Coast Regional District and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
1975 Field Road
Sechelt, BC VON 3A1
Dear Board Members:
We are pleased to present our audit plan for the audit of the financial statements of the
Sunshine Coast Regional District (“SCRD”) and Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District
(“SCRHD”) for the year ended December 31, 2014.
Our report is designed to highlight and explain key issues which we believe to be relevant to
the audit including audit risks, the nature, extent and timing of our audit work and the terms
of our engagement. The audit planning report forms a significant part of our overall
communication strategy with the Board and is designed to promote effective two-way
communication throughout the audit process. It is important that we maintain effective twoway communication with the Board throughout the entire audit process so that we may both
share timely information. The audit process will conclude with a Board meeting and the
preparation of our final report to the Board.
This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Board and should not be distributed
without our prior consent. Consequently, we accept no responsibiLity to a third party that uses
this communication.
The Board plays an important part in the audit planning process and we look forward to
meeting with you to discuss our audit plan as well as any other matters that you consider
appropriate.
Yours truly,

Bill Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn

Sunshine Coast Regionat District
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BDO Ca,ada LLP, a Canadian Limited liability partnership. is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by
guarantee, and forms part of the international 3D0 network of independent -nember firms.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ENGAGEMENT LETTER
The terms and conditions of our engagement are included in the most recent engagement
letter, dated December 11, 2014
RESPONSBILTIES
It is important for the Board to understand the responsibilities that rest with the external
auditor and the responsibilities of those charged with governance. BDO’s responsibilities are
outlined within the annual engagement letter.
The oversight and financial reporting
responsibilities of the Board as they pertain to the annual audit are summarized below.
•

Oversee the work of the external auditor engaged for the purpose of issuing an
independent auditor’s report.

•

Report on all nonaudit services to be provided to the SCRD and SCRHD by the external
auditor.

•

Facilitate the resolution of disagreements between management and the external auditor
regarding financial reporting matters, if any.

•

Refer to Appendix E for full details on the responsibilities of the Board.

ENGAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
•

Express an opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position, results of operations, changes in its net debt, and cash
flows of the SCRD and SCRHD in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards
(“PSAS”).

•

Present significant findings to the Board including key audit and accounting issues, any
significant dehciencies in internal control and any other significant matters arisng from
our work.

•

Provide timely and :onstructive management letters. This wiLt include deficiencies in
internal control identified during our audit. (See Appendix K for prior year’s management
letter.)

•

Consult regarding accounting, indirect taxes and reporting matters as requested throughout
the year.

•

Read the other information included in the SCRD’s Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies, if any, with the audited financial statements.

Sunshine Coast Regional District
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AUDIT STRATEGY
Changes in auditing standards now require auditors to document all significant manual and
computer systems. Building on this, we plan to focus much of our review of transaction
streams using “tests of controls” (compliance procedures) in combination with analytical
review and testing. Balances will be tested using a combination of compliance procedures and
substantive procedures (such as analysis of data and obtaining direct evidence as to the validity
of the items).
Refer to Appendix B for a high leveL overview of our audit strategy.
MATERIALITY
Misstatements, including omitted financial statement disclosures, are considered to be
material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and include an
assessment of both quantitative and qualitative factors and can be affected by the size or
nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.
For purposes of our audit, we have set preliminary materiaLity at $680,000 for the SCRD and a
preliminary performance materiality at $510,000. For the audit of the SCRHD, we have set
preliminary materiality at $83,000 and a preliminary performance materiality at $62,250.
Our materiality calculation is based on the SCRD and SCRHD’s prior year results. In the event
that actual results vary significantly from those used to calculate preliminary materiality, we
wilt communicate these changes to Board members as part of our year end communication.
We wiU communicate all corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified during our audit
to the Board, other than those which we determine to be “clearly trivial”. Misstatements are
considered to be clearly triviaL for purposes of the audit when they are inconsequential both
individually and in aggregate.
•We encourage management to correct any misstatements identified throughout the audit
process.
RISKS AND PLANNED AUDIT RESPONSES
Based on our knowledge of the SCRD and SCRHD’s operations, our past experience, and
knowledge gained from management and you, we have identified the following significant
risks; those risks of material misstatement that, in Our judgment, require special audit
consideration.
Significant risks arise mainly because of the complexity of the accounting rules, the extent of
estimation and judgment involved in the valuation of these financial statement areas, and the
existence of new accounting pronouncements that affect them. We request your input on the
following key risks and whether there are any other areas of concern that the Board members
have identified.

Sunshine Coest Reiona1 District

138

5

EBDO
RISKS AND PLANNED AUDIT RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

Management Override of
Internal Controls

The SCRD and SCRI-ID’s current
internal control systems could
be subject to an override of
existing controls by
management resulting in
unauthorized transactions or
unauthorized adjustments to
the according records.

Review of significant
transactions recorded in the
various ledgers for unusual or
non -recurring adjustments not
addressed by other audit
procedures.

Other areas that may be considered higher risk are as follows:

Cash and Investments

Staff Salaries

Tangible Capital Assets
and Accumulated
Amortization

Cash planning and investment
management are iiiportant
aspects of good financial
controls.
Due to its nature, cash and
investments are almost always
considered to be a risk area in
any audit.
A significant single type of
expenditure that covers many
employees and departments. As
a municipality, this figure is
often of particular interest to
financial statement users
(taxpayers).

Our planned audit procedures
include review of
reconciliations, substantive
testing of transactions and
confirmations of end of period
balances. We will also review
reports on return and
investment strategies.
Application of computer audit
testing to analyze all payroll
transactions in the year is a key
step to identify unusual payroll
relationships for testing. We will
also perform systems testing,
tests of controls and analytical
review of staff salary and levels.

Almost 5 years have passed
since original estimates were
made of the useful lives of
tangible capital assets owned
by the SCRD and SC RI-ID and
estimates wilt need to be re
evaluated to determine if they
are still accurate. This involves
a high level of estimation and
coordination of the finance
depaitment with other
departments.

We will perform tests of
controls for appropriate
authorization of purchases
combined with substantive
testing of additions and
disposals in the year and
amortization calculations.
Useful lives of existing assets
will be reviewed for changes in
estimates, if applicable. Repairs
and maintenance ledgers wilL
also be reviewed for possible
capital items that have been
expensed.

Sunshine Coast Regional District

139

6

DO
Liability for Landfill
Closure

A significant Uability that is
calculated based on
management assumptions and
engineering reports, Due to the
nature of the high Level of
estimates required and the
possibility of new information
becoming available this
calculation Uabitity is
considered a risk area.

We will evew cclatious
related to the liability recorded,
as well as review engineering
reports. We wi’l also perform an
audit of significant assumptions
used for the calculation.

FRAUD RISK
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards require us to discuss fraud risk with the Board
on an annual basis. We have prepared the fotI.owing comments to facilitate this discussion.

I
Details of existing
oversight
pi ocesses
with regards to fraud.

Knowledge of actual,
suspected or alleged
fraud.

Through our planning process, and based
on prior years’ audits, we have
developed an understanding of your
oversight processes including:
•

Annual Board meeting with
management to discuss fraud

•

Discussions
at
regular
Board
meetings and our attendance at
some of those meetings;

•

Review
of
transactions; and

•

Consideration of tone at the top.

reLated

Are there any new
processes or changes
in existing processes
relating to fraud that
we should be aware
of?

party

Currently, we are not aware of any
fraud.

Are you aware of any
instances of actual,
suspected or alleged
fraud affecting the
SCRD and SCRHD?

Refer to Appendix F for our considerations of possible fraud and illegal activities during the
performance of our audit.

FINAL ENGAGEMENT REPORTING
As part of our final reporting to the Board, we wilt provide a communications package to
support the Board in discharging their responsibilities. This communication wilt include any
identified significant deficiencies in internal controls. See Appendix H for a comprehersive iSt
of communication requirements throughout the audit.
Sunshine Coast Regional District

140

7

IBDO
OTHER MATTERS
The following schedule has been agreed to with management:
• Interim audit fieldwork
November 17
19, 2014 (completed
without issue)
• Year end audit fieldwork March 9 17, 2015
• Review of draft financial statements with the Board April 23,
2015
• Finalization of financial statements Immediately subsequent to
approval by Board members
Our annual independence letter has been included as Appendix G.
As part of our audit f
nahzation we will obtain written representation
1
from management, a copy of these representations will be included as
part of our final report.
Refer to Appendix 3 for changes in standards. The most significant
standards on the horizon include Contaminated Sites’ (effective for 2015)
and ‘Financial Instruments” (effective for 201 7).
-

-

-
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8II Cox, CPA, FCA

Engagement Partner

bcox@bdo ca

604.443,4716

Patrick Chan, CPA, CA

Audit Senior Manager

pchan@bdo.ca

604.443.4710

Jennifer Currie

Audit Senior

jcurrieAbdo.ca

604688.5421

Sarah Johnson

Audit Staff

Sjohflsofl@hdo.ca

604.688.5421

Jessica Don8

Audit Staff

jdong@bdo.ca

604.688,5421
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Our overalL audit strategy involves extensive partner and manager invoLvement in alL aspects of
the planning and execution of the audit and is based on our overalL understanding of the SCRD
and SCRHD.
We wilL perform a risk-based audit which allows us to focus our audit effort on higher risk areas
and other areas of concern for management and the Council.
To assess risk accurately, we need
to gain a detailed understanding of
the Town’s operations and the
environment it operates in. This
allows us to identify, assess and
respond to the risks of material
misstatement.
To identify, assess and respond to
risk, we obtain an understanding of
the system of internal control in
place in order to consider the
adequacy of these controls as a
basis for the preparation of the
financial statements. We then
whether
determine
adequate
accounting records have been
maintained and assess the adequacy
of these controls and records as a
basis upon which to design and
undertake our audit testing.
Based on our risk assessment, we design an appropriate audit strategy to obtain s... cient
assurance to enable us to report on the financial statements.
We choose audit procedures that we believe are the most effective and efficient to reduce
audit risk to an acceptably low level. The procedures are a combination of testing the

operating effectiveness of internal controls, substantive analytical procedures and other tests
of detailed transactions.
Having planned our audit, we wilt perform audit procedures maintaining an appropriate degree
of professional skepticism, in order to collect evidence to support our audit opinion.
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All facets of the SCRD and SCRHD’s internal controls including those governing the accounting
records, systems and financial statements will be impacted by the organization’s complexity,
the nature of risks, and the related laws, regulations, or stakeholder requirements. It is
management’s responsibility to determine the level of internal control required to respond
reasonably to the SCRD and SCRHD’s risks.
The preparation of the SCRD and SCRHD’s financiaL statements including all disclosures in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards is the responsibility of
management. Among other things, management is responsible for:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

8.
9.
10.
11.

Designing and implementing internal controls over financial reporting to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free of material misstatements;
Informing the SCRD and SCRHD’s auditors of any deficiencies in design or operation of
internal controls;
Updating the SCRD and SCRHD’s auditors for any material change in the SCRD and
SCRHD’s internal controls including if the individuals responsible for the controls that
have changed;
Identifying and complying with any laws, regulations, and/or agreements which apply
to the SCRD and SCRHD;
Recording any adjustments required to the financial statements to correct material
misstatements;
Safeguarding of assets;
Providing the auditor with all financial records, and related data which may be related
to the recognition, measurement and or disclosure of transactions in the financial
statements;
Providing accurate copies of aLL minutes of the regular and closed meetings of Board
members;
Providing timely, accurate information as requested for the completion of the audit;
AlLowing unrestricted access to persons or information as requested as part of the
audit;
Notifying the auditor of any circumstances which arise between the date the audit
work is completed and the approval date of the financial statements.

Representation Letter
We wilt make specific inquiries of the SCRD and SCRHD’s management about the
representations embodied in the financial statements and internal control over financial
reporting. During the completion of our audit documentation, we will. require management to
confirm in writing certain representations in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. These representations are to be provided to us in the form of a
representations letter which wit!, be provided as near as practicable to, but not after the date
of our auditor’s report on the financial statements.
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Our professional fee for the audit is based on careful consideration of the time required to
complete the required work. Circumstances may arise during the engagement which could
significantly impact the targeted completion dates and or the extent of work required to
complete the audit. As a result, additional fees may be necessary. Such circumstances
include, but are not Limited to, the following:
Significant Issues
1. Changes in the design or function of internal controls can impact the audit and result in
additional substantive testing;
2. Significant number of proposed adjustments which are identified during the audit work;
3. Significant changes are required to the format or information contained in the financial
statements;
4. New issues resulting from changes to:
a. Accounting standards, policies or practices
b. Special events or transactions which were not contemplated in the original
budget
c. The financial reporting process or systems involved
d. Accounting personnel or availability of accounting personnel
e. The requirement to include specialists in the audit work
5. Changes to the scope of the audit.
Audit Execution
1. Audit schedules are not provided in a timely manner, are not mathematically correct,
or do not agree to the underlying accounting records.
2. There are significant delays in responding to our requests for information or responses
require significant further investigation.
3. The quality of the supporting information for the audit work has deteriorated from our
previous experience.
4. A complete working paper package is not provided on the agreed upon date.
5, There is a limitation of access to the financial staff required to complete the audit.
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General Responsibilities
It is the Boards’s responsibility to provide oversight of the financial reporting process. This
incLudes management’s preparation of the financial statements, monitoring of the SCRD and
SCRHD’s internal, controls, overseeing the work of the external auditor, facilitating the
resolution of disagreements between management and the auditor, as well as the finaL review
of the financial. statements and other annual. reporting.
Significant Audit Findings
Based on the work we perform, any significant identified deficiencies in internal. control wit), be
reported to you in writing. The purpose of our audit is to express an opinion on the financial.
statements. While our audit includes a consideration of the internal control structure of the
Town, our work is focused on those controls relevant to financial reporting. As such, our work
was not designed to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls.
We will communicate our views regarding any significant qualitative aspects of the SCRD and
SCRHD’s accounting practices. This would include the selection and application of accounting
policies, estimates and financial statement disclosure. If during our audit we feel. that the
selected policies, estimates or disclosures are not appropriate for the SCRD and SCRHD under
its reporting framework, we wilt communicate these matters to the Board.
In addition, we will communicate:
•
•
•
•
•

Any significant difficulties which arose during the audit;
Any reasons identified which may cause doubt as to the SCRD and SCRHD’s ability
to continue as a going concern;
The written representations we will. request from management;
Any identified unadjusted misstatements;
Any identified or suspected fraudulent activities.
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We are responsible for planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud,
by:
•
•
•
•

dentifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement due to fraud;
Obtaining sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate
responses; and
Responding appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

The likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
likelihood of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from error because fraud may
involve collusion, as well as sophisticated and carefully organized schemes designed to conceal
it.
During the audit, we wilL perform risk assessment procedures and related activities to obtain an
understanding of the entity and its environment, including the SCRD and SCRHD’s internal
controL system, to obtain information for use in identifying the risks of material misstatement
due to fraud and make inquiries of management regarding:
•
•

•
•

Management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated due to fraud, including the nature, extent and frequency of such
assessments;
Management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the SCRD
and SCRHD including any specific risks of fraud that management has identified or that
have been brought to its attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or
disclosures for which a risk of fraud is likely to exist;
Management’s communication, if any, to those charged with governance regarding its
processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the SCRD and SCRHD;
and
Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its view on business
practices and ethical behaviour.

n response to our risk assessment and our inquiries of management, we will perform
procedures to address the assessed risks, which may include:
•

•
•
•

Inquiring of management, members of the Board and others related to any knowledge
of fraud, suspected fraud or alleged fraud;
Performing disaggregated anaLytical procedures and considering unusual or unexpected
relationships identified in the planning of our audit;
Incorporating an element of unpredictability in the selection of the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures; and
Performing additional required procedures to address the risk of management’s
override of controls including:
a
Testing internal, controls designed to prevent and detect fraud;
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o

o

Testing the appropriateness of a sample of adjusting journal entries and other
adjustments for evidence of the possibiLity of material misstatement due to
fraud;
Reviewing accounting estimates for biases that couLd result in material
misstatements due to fraud, including a retrospective review of significant
prior years’ estimates; and
EvaLuating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.
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December11, 2014
Members of the Board
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 Field Road
Sechett, BC VON 3A1
Dear Board Members:
We have been engaged to audit the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District
(the “SCRD”) and the Sunshine Coast Regional Hospital District ( the “SCRHD”) for the year
ended December 31, 2014.
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) no Longer require that we communicate
formally to you in regard to Independence Matters, however we consider it to be a good
practice. As such, we are reporting to you regarding all relationships between the SCRD and
SCRHD (and its related entities) and our firm that, in our professional judgment, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant
rules and related interpretations prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of British
Columbia and applicable legislation, covering such matters as:
•
•
•
•
•

Holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly in a client;
Holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to
exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;
Personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directLy or indirectly, with a client;
Economic dependence on a client; and
Provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We are not aware of any relationships between the SCRD and SCRHD and our firm that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be through to bear on our independence.

We hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the SCRD and SCRHD within the
meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
British Columbia as of the date of this letter.
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This Letter is intended soleLy for the use of Board members and management and should not be
used for any other purposes.
Yours truly,

BiLl Cox, CPA, FCA
Partner through a corporation of
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn
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2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19.

20.
21.
22.

Our responsibilities under
Canadian GAAS
Our audit strategy and audit scope
Fraud risk factors
Going concern matters
Significant estimates or judgments
Audit adjustments
Unadjusted misstatements
Omitted disclosures
Disagreements with Management
Consultations with other
accountants or experts
Major issues discussed with
management in regards to
retention
Significant difficulties encountered
during the audit
Significant deficiencies in internal
control
Material written communication
between BDO and Management
Any relationships which may affect
our independence
Any illegal acts identified during
the audit
Any fraud or possible fraudulent
acts identified during the audit
Significant transactions with
related parties not consistent with
ordinary business
Non-compliance with laws or
regulations identified during the
audit
Limitations of scope over our audit,
if any
Written representations made by
Management
Any modifications to our opinion, if
required

V
V

Y
V
V
/
V
V
V

V

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

V

N

V

N

V

N

V

N

V

y
V
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N
N

V

N

/

N

V

N

/

N

V
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OTHER BDO SERVICES
BDO Solutions provides accounting software management tools need to run a
better operation. Our expert team understands the complex reporting
requirements government eritites must adhere to, as welt as the limited
resources they have to address these needs. Spend more time serving your
constituents, better manage budgets, allocate time and resources more
effectively and improve your ability to focus on the work that really matters to
your organization.
For more information, please visit the following Link:
http: / /www.bdosotutions.corn /ca/
Having a strong strategic plan, such as a succession plan for key employees and
strategic planning for the Board, is critical to an organization’s success. With
our succession planning services, we can help your organization with:
•
•
•
•

Planning for a change in leadership
Setting a strategic direction for the Board
Develop a strategic business plan for operations
Aligning all three groups of stakeholders (Board, employees and
members) and enhancing communication

For more information, please visit the following link:
http: / /wwwbdo.ca/en/Services/Advisory/Business
Transition / pages/default.aspx
As Canada’s leading financial advisory firm, BDO helps organizations and their
management teams effectively assess, develop and manage strategic
initiatives.
Visit the following link to find out more:
http: / /www.bdo. ca/en/Services/Advisorv/ FinanciaLAdvisory! pages/defauLt.aspx
Our dedicated team of professional bookkeepers across Canada combined with
our powerful Microsoft cLoud technology platform can provide you and your
organization with a world class bookkeeping solution that gives you anytime
access to your financial information. Our BDO Client Portal provides you with
access to comprehensive business management functionality and enables you
to make proactive and informed decisions for your organization.
Visit the Link below to find out how we can create a customized bookkeeping
solution for your organization:
http: / /www.bdo. ca/en /Services/Outsourcing/ Bookkeeping! pages! default.aspx
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Government Entities operating in Canada are impacted by commodity taxes in
some way or another. These include GST/HST, QST, PST, various employer
taxes, and unless managed property, can have a significant impact on your
organization’s bottom line.
The rules for Government Entities can be
especially confusing, and as a result many organizations end up paying more
for indirect tax then they need to.
Government Entities must keep on top of changes to ensure they are taking
advantage of the maximum refund opportunities. At BDO, we have helped a
number of organizations of all sizes with refund opportunities, which can
reduce costs for the organization and improve overall financial health.
For more information, please visit the following link:
http: / /www.bdo.ca/en/Services/Tax/lndirect-Tax/pages/defautt.aspx
BDO PULICATIONS

BDO’s national and international accounting and assurance department issues publications on
the transition and application of Public Sector Accounting Standards. In addition, we offer a
wide array of publications on Accounting Standards for Private Enterprises (ASPE), International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and Accounting Standards for Not-for-profit organizations
(ASNPO).
For addtional information on PSAS, including links to archived publications and model financial
statements, refer to the link below:
http: I / www. bdo. ca/en I library! services/assurance-and-accountingjpages/default.aspx.

MYPDR
Cass is in session! Meeting Your Professional Development Requirements (MYPDR) is an
educational program designed to support our clients, contacts and alumni in achieving their
ongoing professional development requirements.
Through the MYPDR program, we are committed to providing timely, relevant topics that can
support you in meeting your ongoing professional development needs. For more information on
the MYPDR program or to register, please visit http://www.cvent.com/d/34qgxp.
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The following summarizes the status of new standards and the changes to existing standards
as of the fall of 2014. The Appendix also reviews Exposure Drafts, Consultation Papers,
Invitations to Comment, Issue Papers and Statements of Principles that provide information on
the future direction of CPA Public Sector Accounting Handbook.
NEW STANDARDS

-

PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARD (PSAS)

Section PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites
-

This new Section estabLishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for Liabilities
reLating to contaminated sites of governments and those organizations appLying the CPA Public
Sector Accounting Handbook.
This section applies to government assets no longer in productive use and non-government
assets for which the government is responsibLe. It does not appLy to tangible capital assets
(however, the PSAB GAAP hierarchy would require consideration of Asset Retirement
Obligations in regard to tangible capital assets).
The main features of the new Section are as follows:
•

A liability should be recognized when contamination exceeds an accepted
environmental standard and the entity is directly responsible, or accepts responsibility
for, the damage;

•

A liability should be measured at the entity’s best estimate of the costs directly
attributable to remediation of the contamination; and

•

Outstanding site assessments do not negate the requirement to assess whether a
liability exists.

This Section is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014. Earlier adoption
is encouraged. For entities with a December year end this means that 2015 is the first year that
the standard must be followed. An entity should begin to consider immediately how it will
apply with this standard. Organizations are to apply PS 2120 if adoption of PS3260 results in a
change in accounting policy. This means that there is a choice about whether to apply
prospectively or retrospectively.
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NEW STANDARDS

-

PSAS (NOT YET EFFECTPIE)

Section PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation
This Section revises and replaces FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, Section PS 1200. The
following changes have been made to the Section:
•

Remeasurement gains and losses are reported in a new statement;

•

Other comprehensive income that can arise when a government includes results of
government business enterprises and government business partnerships in its summary
financial statements is reported in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses;
and

•

The accumulated surplus or deficit is presented as the total of the accumulated
operating surplus or deficit and the accumulated remeasurement gains and losses.

The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS 3450 Financial Instruments
and PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation and for government organizations are effective for
fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. n the case of governments, the new
requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2016. Earlier adoption
is permitted.
-

-

Section PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation
This Section revises and replaces PS 2600, FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION. The following
changes have been made to the Section:
•

The definition of currency risk is amended to conform to the definition in PS 3450
&INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS;

•

The exception to the measurement of items on initial recognition that applies when
synthetic instrument accounting is used is removed;

•

At each financial statement date subsequent to initial recognition, non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency that are included in the fair value category in
accordance with Section PS 3450 are adjusted to reflect the exchange rate at that
date;

•

The deferral and amortization of foreign exchange gains and losses relating to longterm foreign currency denominated monetary items is discontinued;

•

Until the period of settlement, exchange gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of remeasurement gains and Losses rather than the statement of operations;
and

•

Hedge accounting and the presentation of items as synthetic instruments are removed.

-

The new requirements are to be applied at the same time as PS 3450, FJNANCAL INSTRUMENTS
and PS 1201, FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION and for government organizations are
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of governments, the
new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2016. Earlier
adoption is permitted.
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Section PS 3041, Portfolio Investments
This Section revises and replaces Section PS 3040, PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS. The following
changes have been made:
•
•
•

•

The scope is expanded to include interests in pooled investment funds;
Definitions are conformed to those in FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, Section PS 3450;
The requirement to apply the cost method is removed, as the recognition and
measurement requirements within Section PS 3450 apply, other than to the initial
recognition of an investment with significant concessionary terms; and
Other terms and requirements are conformed to Section P5 3450, including use of the
effective interest method.

This section is to be applied at the same time as PS 3450, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, PS 2601
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION and PS 1201, FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION and for
government organizations are effective for fiscaL years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In
the case of governments, the new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after ApriL 1, 2016. Earlier adoption is permitted.
Section PS 3450

-

Financial Instruments

PSAB approved amendments to Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments, to align the reporting of
income on externally restricted assets that are financial instruments with the requirements in
Section PS 3100, Restricted Assets and Revenues. The amendments clarify the application of
Section PS 3100 (paragraphs PS 3100.11 .12) when accounting for:
-

•

A change in the fair value of a financial asset in the fair value category that is
externally restricted;

•

Income attributable to a financial instrument that is externally restricted; or

a

A gain or loss associated with a financial instrument that is externally restricted.

These amendments recognize the importance of the nature of restrictions and the terms of
contractual agreements in reporting such transactions and events when externally restricted

assets and income are involved.
This new Section establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and non-financial derivatives.
The main features of the new Section are:
•

Items within the scope of the Section are assigned to one of two measurement
categories: fair value, or cost or amortized cost;

•

Almost alt derivatives, including embedded derivatives that are not closely related to
the host contract, are measured at fair value;
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•

Fair value measurement also applies to portfolio investments in equity instruments that
are quoted in an active market;

•

Other financial assets and financial Liabilities are generally measured at cost or
amortized cost;

•

Until an item is derecognized, gains and losses arising due to fair value re
measurement are reported in the statement of re-measurement gains and tosses;

•

Budget-to-actual comparisons
measurement gains and losses;

•

When the reporting entity defines and implements a risk management or investment
strategy to manage and evaluate the performance of a group of financial assets,
financial liabilities or both on a fair value basis, the entity may elect to include these
items in the fair value category;

•

New requirements clarify when financial liabilities are derecognized;

•

The offsetting of a financial liability and a financial asset is prohibited in absence of a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; and

•

New disclosure requirements of items reported on and the nature and extent of risks
arising from financial instruments.

are

not

required

within

the

statement

of

re

The new requirements are to be app(ied at the same time as PS 2601, FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSLATION and PS 1201, FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION and for government
organizations are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012. In the case of
governments, the new requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2016. Earlier adoption is permitted. This Standard should be adopted with prospective
application except for an accounting policy related to embedded derivatives within contracts,
which can be applied retroactively or prospectively.
Note also the exposure draft “Financial Instruments: Transition” (discussed below) that
proposed clarification of some detailed aspects of the Financial Instruments standard.
EXPOSURE DRAFTS

-

PSAS

Amendments to the Introduction (Closed for Comment)
PSAB proposes to amend the introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards to clarify the
applicability of the CPA PSA Handbook for various public sector entities.
Related Party transactions (Closed for Comment)
Exposure draft issued by the PSAB to propose the issue of two new sections, RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES and INTER-ENTITY TRANSACTIONS. The main features of the exposure draft are
as follows:
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
•

A related party exists when one party has the ability to exercise control or shared
control over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are subject to
common control or shared control. Related parties also include individuals that are
members of key management personnel and close family members.

•

Disclosure of key management personnel compensation arrangements, expense
allowances and other similar payments routinely paid in exchange for services rendered
is not required.

a

Two entities that have a member of key management personnel in common may be
related depending upon that individual’s ability to affect the policies of both entities in
their mutual dealings.

•

Disclosure is only required when transactions and events between related parties have
or could have a material financial effect on the financial statements.

•

Determining which related party transactions to disclosure is a matter of judgment
based on the assessment of certain factors

INTER-ENTITY TRANSACTIONS
•

Inter-entity transactions involving the transfer of assets or liabilities should be
recognized by both a provider and a recipient at carrying amount, exchange amount or
fair vaLue depending on the particular circumstances of each case.

•

Inter-entity transactions in the normal course of operations or under a policy of cost
allocation and recovery should be recognized on a gross basis at the exchange amount.

•

A recipient may recognize unallocated costs as a revenue and expense at carrying
amount, fair value or another amount based on existing policy, depending on the
particular circumstances of each case.

a

Information about inter-entity transactions would be disclosed in accordance with the
proposed new Section on related party disclosures.

Restructurings (Closed for Comment (assuming dated after Nov 28, 2014))
Exposure draft issued by the PSAB to propose the issue of a new section, RESTRUCTURING
TRANSACTIONS. The main features of the exposure draft are as follows:
•

A restructuring transaction is defined separately from an acquisition. The key
distinction between the two is the absence of an exchange of consideration in a
restructuring transaction.

•

A restructuring transaction is defined as a transfer of an integrated set of assets and/or
liabilities, together with related program or operating responsibilities, that does not
involve an exchange of consideration.

•

Individual assets and liabilities transferred in a restructuring transaction are
derecognized by the transferor at their carrying amount and recognized by the

recipient at their carrying amount with applicable adjustments.

•

The increase in net assets or net liabilities resulting from recognition and derecognition
of individual assets and liabilities received from at!. transferors, and transferred to all
recipients in a restructuring transaction, is recognized as revenue or as an expense.

•

Restructuring-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.
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•

Individual assets and liabilities received in a restructuring transaction are initially
classified based on the accounting policies and circumstances of the recipient at the
restructuring date.

•

The financial position and results of operations prior to the restructuring date are not
restated.

•

Disclosure of information about the transferred assets, liabilities and reLated
operations prior to the restructuring date by the recipient is encouraged but not
required.

Assets, Contingent Assets and contractual rights (Closed for Comment)
Exposure draft issued by the PSAB to propose the issue of three new sections, ASSETS,
CONTINGENT ASSETS and CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS. The main features of the exposure draft are
as follows:
ASSETS
•

Additional guidance en the definition of assets is provided.

•

Disclosure of types of assets that are not recognized is required.

CONTINGENT ASSETS
•

Contingent assets are defined.

•

Disclosure of contingent assets is required when the occurrence of the confirming
future event is likely.

CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS
•

Contractual rights are defined.

•

Disclosure of contractual rights is required.

Financial Instruments: Transition (Open for Comment until January 15, 2015)
Exposure draft that deals technical details related to the standard by providing two
amendments and a few clarifications.
The first amendment proposed definitively states that unless a contractual right or contractual
obligation underlies a receivable or a payable, the Financial lnstruments standard does not
apply. There must be a contract for there to be a financial instrument.
The second amendment removes a correct, but redundant, paragraph that notes the Financial
Instrument Standard does not apply to a receivable under a lease.
Clarifications are made in areas related to transfer of collateral pursuant to a credit risk
management mechanism in a derivative contract, treatment of unamortized discounts or
premiums related to debt buy-backs, associated unamortized discount or premium on initial
adoption, and derivatives not recognized or recorded at fair value on initial adoption.

These detailed technical changes Will likely have most impact to senior governments and it is
not expected that many local goverr.ments wilt be affected.
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CONSULTATION PAPERS

-

PSAB

Characteristics of Public Sector Entities (Consultation Paper 1) (Closed for Comment)
The objective of this project is to review and amend, if necessary, the conceptual framework
in PS 1000, FINANCIAL STATEMENT CONCEPTS, and PS 1100, FINANCIAL STATEMENT OBJECTIVES
with respect to measurement of financial performance. This review could also affect PS 1201,
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION.
Measuring Financial Performance in Public Sector Financial Statements (Consultation
Paper 2) (Closed for Comment)
The objective of this project is to review and amend, if necessary, the concepts underlying
financial performance in the existing public sector conceptual framework in FINANCIAL
STATEMENT CONCEPTS, Section PS 1000, and FINANCIAL STATEMENT OBJECTIVES, Section PS
1100. This review could also affect FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION, Section PS 1201.
STATEMENTS OF PRINCIPLES

-

PSAB

Asset Retirement Obligations (Closed for Comment)
The PSAB proposes in this statement of principles a new section on retirement obligations
associated with tangible capital assets controlled by a public sector entity. The statement
includes retirement obligations associated with tangible capital assets resulting from legal,
constructive and equitable obligations which include post-retirement operation, maintenance

and monitoring. Retirement costs would increase the carrying amount of the related tangible
capital asset or a component thereof and would be expensed in a rational and systematic
manner. The subsequent remeasurement of the liability can result in either a change in the
carrying amount of the related tangible assets or a component thereof, or an expense,
depending on the nature of the remeasurement or whether the asset remains in productive
use. Often the best method with which to estimate the liability is a present value technique.
Not-for-Profit Organizations (Closed for Comment)

This statement of principles provides 15 key principles in areas related to:
•

Revenue recognition

•

Long-lived assets

•

Controlled entities

•

Financial statement presentation

Important principles in the area of revenue recognition include removal of both the deferral
and restricted fund methods of accounting for revenue from contributions. Revenue would now
be recognized as soon as the entity controls the related asset (note that this would preclude
the recording of pledges receivable). The only exception to immediate recognition of revenue
from contributions is when the transfer agreement contains a stipulation that creates a
liability. In this case, revenue would be recorded as the liability is extinguished.
Principles in the area of long-lived assets harmonize the approach to accounting for impairment
of such assets. Private sector NPO accounting rules had an “all or nothing” approach meaning
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that a long-lived asset was either not impaired or fully impaired and written off. These
principles would now harmonize private sector accounting rules with PSAB which allows for a
partial impairment model.
Accounting for controlled entities will also be mostly harmonized between private and public
sector NPOs. Private sector NPOs will have to consolidate all controlled entities with only two
exceptions:
•

f there is a large number of individually immaterial controlled entities (such as Girl
Guide groups)

•

If the controlled entity is profit-oriented (in which case it would be accounted for on
the equity basis)

Principles in the area of financial statement presentation require that both private sector and
public sector NPOs would have to present their expenses by function in the Statement of
Operations and by object in the notes to the financial statements. Public sector NPOs would
use the “Net Debt” model of presentation on their Statement of Financial Position, but private
sector NPOs would continue to use their existing modeL.
Revenue (Closed for Comment)
PSAB proposes in this statement of principles to focus on two areas of revenue which are
exchange and unilateral (non-exchange) transactions with the presence of performance
obligations being the distinguishing feature. Performance obligations are enforceable promises
to provide goods or services. Revenue from an exchange transaction is recognized as the
performance obligation is satisfied whereas unilateral transactions are recognized when there
is the authority and past event that gives rise to a claim of economic recourses.
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STATUS OF CURRENT PROJECTS

Article I.

-

PSAB

Active Projects
lExpected Release Date
2014/201 5
IIQ1
[Q4

Standards for public sector entities
Asset Retirement Obligations

IlExposure Draft
iHandbook
Release

I

I

Assets

1

((Q2

Consultation
Paper

Concepts Underlying Financial Performance

[No Set Date

Fiscal Sustainability (Research project)
impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Not-for-Profit Organizations

IProject on Hold
INo Set Date
I
‘Handbook
Release
IHandbook
Release

PSA Handbook Terminology
Related Party Transactions

j

andbook
1
H
jiRelease
IlExposure Draft

Restructurins

H

Revenue

(AASB)
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EXPOSURE DRAFTs

-

AAS8

Reporting on Audited Financial Statements (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft proposing a new international Standard on Auditing (ISA)
701, Communicating Key Audit Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report; and revising ISA
260, Communication with Those Charged with Governance; ISA 570, Going Concern; ISA 700,
Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial Statements; iSA 705, Modifications to the
Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report; ISA 706, Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and
Other Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report; and conforming amendments to
other SAs, issued by the international Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (AASB). The
result would be new and revised respective Canadian Auditing Standards (CASs).
Financial Statement Disclosures (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft related to the audit of financial statement disclosures to
obtain clarification of the existing requirements. They are proposing to revise ISA 200, Overall
Objectives of the Independent Auditor and the Conduct of an Audit in Accordance with
International Standards on Auditing; ISA 210, Agreeing the Terms of Audit Engagements; ISA
240, The Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements; ISA
260, Communication with Those Charged with Governance; ISA 300, Planning an Audit of
Financial Statements; ISA 315, Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement
through Understanding the Entity and Its Environment; ISA 320, Materiality in Planning and
Performing and Audit; ISA 330, The Auditor’s Responses to Assessed Risks; ISA 450, Evaluation
of Misstatements Identified during the Audit; and ISA 700, Forming an Opinion and Reporting
on Financial Statements.
Responsibilities Relating to Other Information (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft to revise iSA 720, The Auditor’s Responsibilitie5 Relating to
Other Information in Documents Containing or Accompanying Audited Financial Statements
and the Auditor’s Report Thereon, including:
•

the proposed expansion of the auditor’s responsibilities beyond that necessary for the
audit of the financial statements; and

•

definitions of “other information” and “annual report”, which scope in information
made available to the auditor after the date of the auditor’s report.

Standards for Assurance Engagements (Closed for Comment)
The AASB issued an exposure draft proposing to adopt nternationat Standard on Assurance
Engagements (SAE) 3000, Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information as Canadian Standards on Assurance Engagements (CSAE) 3000,
Attestation Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
to issue a new CSAE 3001, Direct Engagements. CSAE 3001 wilL be based on CSAE 3000 but

wouW be revised, as necessary, to reflect the differences between attestation engagements
and direct engagements.
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PROJECTS AASB
-

The AASB wilt continue to discuss issues on this topic, with a goat of issuing an exposure draft
in early 2015.
COMMUNICATIONS WITH LAW FIRMS
The AASB is conducting a project to revise the “Joint Policy Statement Concerning
Communications with Law Firms Regarding Claims and Possible Claims in Connection with the
Preparation and Audit of Financial Statements” appended to CAS 501, Audit Evidence
Specific Considerations for Selected Items, including:

—

•

•
•

whether the revised Joint Policy Statement should include illustrations of how the
evaluation of claims and possible claims under different financial reporting frameworks
could be described in the inquiry Letter or whether such illustrations should be issued
separately as non-authoritative guidance;
whether any consequential amendments would be necessary to CAS 501; and
what the effective date of the revised Joint Policy Statement should be and whether
early implementation should be permitted.

The AASB reviewed a draft revised Joint Policy Statement, with a goat of approving an exposure
draft at its September 2014 meeting.
Special Reports

—

Assurance an Compliance with Agreements, Statutes and Regulations

The AASB is conducting a review to revise Sections 5800, Special Reports Introduction, 5815,
Audit Reports on Compliance with Agreements, Statutes and Regulations,
Special Reports
8100, General Review Standards, and 8600, Reviews of Compliance with Agreements and
Regulations, including:
—

—

•
•
•

•
•

how the standard would interact with umbrella assurance standards;
how material non-compliance with specified provisions of an agreement, statute or
regulation should be defined and addressed in such engagements; and
how the practitioner would consider materiality when planning and performing the
engagement (in particular, in situations when the matter being reported on is
qualitative rather than quantitative in nature).
whether a standard, an Assurance and Related Services Guideline or some form of nonauthoritative guidance should be developed; and
if a standard is to be developed, the content of that standard and its relationship with
the umbrella assurance standards.

The AAS3 will continue to discuss issues on this topic, with a goal of approving an exposure
draft in the first half of 2015.
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PPENDIX, K
Prior Year Man

ApriL 16, 2014
Mr. John France, Chief Administrative Officer
Sunshine Coast Regional District
1975 FieLd Road
Sechelt, BC
VON 3A1
Dear Mr. France:
Re:

Auditor’s Management Letter

During the course of our audit of the financial statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional
District for the year ended December 31, 2013, we identified matters which may be of interest
to management. The objective of an audit is to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of any material misstatement and it is not designed to identify
matters that may be of interest to management in discharging its responsibilities. Accordingly
an audit would not usuaLly identify all such matters.
The responsibility for producing financial statements and ensuring adequate internal controls
and sound business practices is the responsibility of the Board through management and is a
part of managements overall responsibility for the ongoing activities of the organization.
Policies and procedures developed by the organization to safeguard its assets and to provide
reasonable assurance that errors and irregularities or illegal acts are promptly identified, must
be properly monitored to ensure that all staff are complying with the guidelines provided.
The comments and concerns expressed herein did not have a material effect on the Sunshine
Coast Regional District’s financial statements and, as such, our opinion thereon was without
reservation. However, in order for the organization to ensure the safeguarding of its assets and
the accuracy of its records, we believe our comments and concerns ShOuld be taken into
consideration by management. Our comments are not intended to reflect upon the honesty or

competence of the organization’s employees.

The matters we have identified are discussed below.
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Status of Prior Year Recommendations
There were a few carry-forward points from the prior year’s management letter. We track
these points to ensure that recommendations are followed up and implemented (or
alternatively found to be impracticaL).
ommendations

It

Terminated Staff User Accounts
We noted last year that when District staff are
terminated, the IT department is not notified in a
timely manner so that they can deactivate the staff
accounts.

to note the
are pleased
We
implementation and usage of the HR
the
Action Form which reports
employee’s last day, This form is then
forwarded to IT so they can terminate
the employee’s access rights promptly.

The potential issue is that there could be staff
accounts within the active directory which are
indicated to be active even though the staff member
has already left employment from the District. This
raises the issue that termmated staff can log back
onto the District’s network.
We recommended that formal procedures are
implemented where HR notties IT through a written
termination request before the staff’s last day so
that IT can deactivate the staff’s account on the last
day of work.

Current Year’s Observations and Recommendations
1.

Early Adoption of Financial Instruments

Another set of new standards, known as the Financial Instruments Standards, are coming in
2016. These standards include: PS 3450 “Financial. Instruments” and related sections PS
1201 “Financial Statement Presentation”, PS 2601 “Foreign Currency Translation” and
PS 3041 “Portfolio Investments”.
-

-

-

-

Although not mandated until 2016, these standards can be elected to be adopted early.
We are encouraging some local government to consider early adoption along with a related
election to record their investments at fair value. There are two main reasons why we
believe this may he of value: first, the market value of investments is likely more relevant
to most users then the historical cost method in use currently; and secondly, the standards
require disclosure and analysis of risks related to financial instruments which we feel is
good information for the readers of the financial statements.
For your investments held in MFA pooled funds, it is believed that the market value
approximates the historical cost amount due to the nature of these funds and the continual
level of trading within the funds. The amounts related to these investments reported in
the financial statements would likely not change.
Sunshine Coast Regionat Distuct
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For your investments held in financial institutions, the fair value will likely be different
from the historical cost resulting in an adjustment at year end.
n addition to the adjustment of the investments to fair value, there wilL be expanded risk
disclosures.
We recommend that management consider whether there is value in early adopting these
standards in 2014 rather than waiting untiL the 2016 year.
Management Comments:
“Management is aware of the change in accounting standards (PS 3450
“Financial
Instruments” and related sections PS 1201 -“Financial Statement Presentation”, PS 2601
“Foreign Currency Translation” and PS 3041
“Portfolio Investments”) and are still
reviewing the disclosure requirements and impacts to the SCRD. Staff did not feel there
was any significant risk to the SCRD, as to its portfolio investment. Management is
targeting early adoption of these standards in 2015.”
-

-

-

2. Contaminated Sites

We have previously mentioned to you the new public sector accounting standard that
comes into force in 2015 known as “Liabilities for Contaminated Sites”. This standard
requires that a government entity record a liability in regard to any properties that are not
in use where there is environmentaL contamination above the Legal standard. !mportantly,
the standard requires the government to methodologically review its properties to
determine those properties at risk and potentially to conduct environmental testing on
high-risk properties.
The approach that this standard takes makes it quite onerous because of the requirement
to actively go beyond just what you are already aware of. It is expected that many local
governments will have no resulting ending liability under this standard, yet they will stilt
have to expend significant effort to be able to show this. Because of the requirement to
determine inventory of properties, review the history of those properties, and potentially
engage external experts in the process; this is not something that can be left to the last
minute.
Your staff are aware of these new standards and have developed preliminary plans for
completing its requirements. We encourage them to get a start on this early in the fiscal
year.
Management Comments:
Management has conducted a thorough review of all the SCRD owned properties to
determine those at risk and any that may require additional environmental testing, as it
relates to the disclosure requirements for “Liabilities for Contaminated Sites”. As a
result, only one property has been identified by management as a potential risk. Further
testing and investigation is required to verify if the site is contaminated. This
information and any disclosure associated will be ready for adoption in 2014.
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—

-

While our audit did not reveal any significant misstatements or irregularities, it is important to
understand that our audit procedures are designed specifically to gather sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to support our opinion on the financial statements and would not
necessarily uncover all errors or fraud, if present.
The scope of the audit did not include a detailed study of internaL controLs. However, we did
review those accounting systems and internal controls to the extent necessary to effectively
pLan and execute the audit. We found the accounting systems and records to be welt organized,
up to date and properly maintained.
We received excellent cooperation from everyone at the Sunshine Coast Regional District
during the audit. We thank Tina Perreault, Jackie Day, Brad Wing and all of the Finance
Department staff for their assistance in making the audit process as efficient as possibLe.
Please do not hesitate to contact us should you wish to further discuss any of the matters
discussed in this letter.
Yours truly,

t
Bill Cox, CPA, CA
Partner through a corporation
BDO Canada LLP
Chartered Accountants
BC/mkn
c.c.

Board of Directors
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